Public Document Pack

Human Resources
Committee
Agenda
Date: Thursday, 16 December 2021
Time: 5.00 pm
Venue: City Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Lesley Alexander, Kerry Bailes, Sarah Classick, Richard Eddy, Lorraine Francis,
Farah Hussain, Paula O'Rourke, Steve Pearce and Tim Wye

Issued by: Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3399, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 24357
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Wednesday, 8 December 2021

Human Resources Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 4 - 6)

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest

4.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

5.

(Pages 7 - 13)

Public Forum

NB. up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Please note that the following deadlines will apply in
relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on 10 December 2021.
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 15
December 2021.

6.

Trade Union Forum

7.

Work Programme

5.15 pm

To note the work programme.

(Pages 14 - 15)

8.

5.20 pm

Bristol City Council Apprenticeships Service

Human Resources Committee – Agenda

(Pages 16 - 38)
9.

Health Safety & Wellbeing Annual Report

5.50 pm
(Pages 39 - 60)

10. Staff Led Groups Annual Report

6.10 pm
(Pages 61 - 83)

11. 2021 Employee Engagement Surveys

6.30 pm
(Pages 84 - 101)

12. COVID Recovery and Update

6.50 pm
(Pages 102 - 105)

13. Update on key HR matters

7.00 pm
(Pages 106 - 118)

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
Changes to how we hold public meetings
Following changes to government rules, public meetings including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory
meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made) and scrutiny will now be held at City Hall.
COVID-19 Precautions at City Hall (from July 2021)
When attending a meeting at City Hall, COVID-19 precautions will be taken, and where possible we
will:
 Have clear signage inviting you to check in to the venue using the NHS COVID-19 app or record
your contact details for track and trace purposes.
 Provide public access that enables social distancing of one metre to be maintained
 Promote and encourage wearing of face coverings when walking to and from the meeting
 Promote good hand hygiene: washing and disinfecting hands frequently
 Maintain an enhanced cleaning regime and continue with good ventilation
COVID-19 Safety Measures for Attendance at Council Meetings (from July 2021)
To manage the risk of catching or passing on COVID-19, it is strongly recommended that any person
age 16 or over attending a council meeting should follow the above guidance but also include the
following:





Show certification of a negative NHS COVID-19 lateral flow (rapid) test result: taken in the 48
hours prior to attending. This can be demonstrated via a text message or email from NHS Test
and Trace.
An NHS COVID-19 Pass which confirms double COVID-19 vaccination received at least 2 weeks
prior to attending the event via the NHS App. A vaccination card is not sufficient.
Proof of COVID-19 status through demonstrating natural immunity (a positive NHS PCR test in
the last 180 days) via their NHS COVID-19 pass on the NHS App.
Visitors from outside the UK will need to provide proof of a negative lateral flow (rapid) test
taken 48 hours prior to attendance, demonstrated via a text message or email.

Reception staff may ask to see this on the day of the meeting.
No one should attend a Bristol City Council event or venue if they:
 are required to self-isolate from another country
 are suffering from symptoms of COVID-19
 have tested positive for COVID-19 and are requested to self–isolate

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

Members of the press and public who wish to attend City Hall are advised that you may be asked to
watch the meeting on a screen in another room due to the maximum occupancy of the venue.
Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published
on the Council’s website before the meeting. Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.
The following requirements apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, it may be that only the first sheet will be copied and made available
at the meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine
articles that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee and published within
the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public via publication on
the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of Information Act
requests in the future.
We will try to remove personal and identifiable information. However, because of time constraints we
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Other committee papers may be placed on the
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.

Page 5

www.bristol.gov.uk

During the meeting:









Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.
Under our security arrangements, please note that members of the public (and bags) may be
searched. This may apply in the interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all
attending.
As part of the drive to reduce single-use plastics in council-owned buildings, please bring your own
water bottle in order to fill up from the water dispenser.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items). If you ask a question or make a representation, then
you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have given your consent to this. If you do not wish to
be filmed you need to make yourself known to the webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that persons attending meetings may take
photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and report on the meeting (Oral commentary is
not permitted during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members of the public should therefore
be aware that they may be filmed by others attending and that is not within the council’s control.
The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-ourwebsite/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Human Resources Committee
23 September 2021 at 5.00 pm

Members Present:
Councillors: Lesley Alexander, Sarah Classick, Lorraine Francis, Paula O'Rourke, Steve Pearce and
Tim Wye
Officers in Attendance:
Mark Williams (Head of Human Resources), James Brereton (Human Resources Business Partner) and
Mark Jefferson (Workforce Analytics Manager)

16

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information

The Chair welcomed all parties to the meeting and introductions were made.
17

Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Kerry Bailes and Richard Eddy.
18

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest received.
19

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

A Member raised a concern that under Item 12 Workforce Strategy – Overview, paragraph 6., of the key
points highlighted during discussion, did not accurately reflect the outcome of the discussion. It was
therefore suggested that paragraph 6 be amended to read that ‘In some areas response rates were slow
and suggested inefficiencies, however that might be down to capacity.’
Resolved – That the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 July 2021 be agreed as a correct record
subject to the above amendment.
20

Public Forum

Page 7

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

There was no public forum received.
21

Work Programme

The Committee received and noted the Work Programme for 2021/22.
The Head of Human Resources (HR) clarified that:


22

The Health Safety & Wellbeing Annual Report and the Apprentice Annual Report had been
rescheduled for the December meeting.
Proposals for Employee Travel Policy

The Committee received a report of the Director of Workforce and Change regarding Travel Policy. The
Head of Human Resources introduced the report with a detailed presentation and invited the Committee
to provide views and observations on options to reform the Council’s Travel Policy.
Members were informed of the significant issues in the report which were –
1. The Council’s Travel Policy needed to be ambitious and reflect the requirements of the Corporate
Strategy and One City Climate Strategy.
2. There would need to be changes to the Council’s travel policy from 2022, to reflect the impact of
the Clean Air Zone on travel for work.
3. Consultation had taken place with trade unions and council employees over the Summer on
proposals for reform
4. It was important to obtain the views of Members as the Travel Policy also applied to Members
In discussion and in response to Members questions the following points were raised:
1. Initial consultation had already taken place and it was planned that a revised Policy would be
ready to implement from next April
2. Upon review, it was noted that there had been a reduction in travel spend related to Covid 19.
Although there had been a recent increase in vehicle usage it was not as high as 19/20.
3. Records have shown that the workforce currently has 73.5% compliant vehicles and a percentage
of non-compliant and unclassified vehicles.
4. GPS postcode mapping was able to identify where employees lived in relation to Bristol, defined
as the ‘travel to work area’. Most staff live in those areas, with 60% living within the boundary of
the city.
5. All employees are currently permitted to claim car milage for business travel where agreed by
their line manager.
6. The average age of vehicles for staff using grey fleet is 8.5 years

Page 8

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

7. With Continuing Professional Development (CPD) largely delivered online it is not anticipated that
this will result in a negative impact for employees.
8. From the CAZ implementation date vehicles non-compliant after 1 year will be charged except
blue badge holders, which was one of the original proposals that had been consulted upon.
9. Trade union colleagues had raised the concern that there is a balance between costs and
convenience. It was confirmed that there would continue to be engagement with the Trade unions
once there were revised proposals.
10. In some roles employees are required to have their own vehicle and it was of concern that 30% of
vehicles were non-compliant. It was additionally of concern that staff could be required to incur
significant expense to change to a compliant vehicle.
11. It was recognised that the transition could be challenging for some, but employees had a year to
transition to a compliant vehicle which could be extended in extraordinary circumstances. In
addition, the ages of the vehicles for compliancy were 2004 for petrol vehicles and 2016 for diesel
vehicles.
12. It was noted that in Leeds a modal shift transpired to compliant vehicles after the announcement
of a CAZ.
13. Members asked whether there should be consideration of a wider travel to work area where staff
needed to make a lot of journeys to travel across the boundary. It was noted that the salary
sacrifice scheme for bikes had been well used and a salary sacrifice or other appropriate scheme
for cars was being considered.
14. A proposal to update the Pool car fleet arrangements needed to be developed to consider
increased locations where staff may be able to pick up a car and to mitigate against the creation of
perverse arrangements where a member of staff had to travel into the zone to collect a car only to
travel out of the zone to carry out their work.
15. It was noted that air travel occurs from time to time
16. Members felt it was important to be clear about the transition period for staff and what
alternatives could be made available eg use of pool cars or use of incentives
17. Members asked whether there had been any consultation with disability work groups as there
would be adjustments required for those that do not qualify to be blue badge holders
18. The HR Business Partner confirmed that reasonable adjustments (including arrangements for car
parking) were made at or near BCC workplaces wherever it was practicable to do so. It would be
more difficult to support this type of arrangement further out of the city.
19. The complexity of the issue was recognised by Members. although it was clear that the aspiration
was to reduce the usage of cars through provision of alternatives, there were still lots of barriers.
CAZ, buses, walking were not yet embedded in the infrastructure. It was necessary to highlight
the needs of social workers and health care workers who were essential car users.
20. Officers were talking to services such as the social care team directly to strike the right balance to
efficiently manage the transition to new ways of working. It was clarified that Social care teams
generally used their own vehicles rather than using fleet or pool vehicles.
21. It was noted that APSE had been grappling for some years with an imperative to eradicate the use
of grey fleet and it may be useful for Officers to consider their experience on this issue. It was a
priority to avoid hurting people that could least afford it and avoid hurting essential workers.

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

22. It was recognised that Bristol was at the vanguard again and the workforce change policy needed
to fully consider the new ‘world’ with working from home and car clubs a new norm. There may
be further opportunities to save the Council the cost of running a fleet and another half a million
pounds grey fleet usage. For example, to consider how innovative borrowing of green bonds
could be used to make savings.
23. There was an imperative to save money, but the policy proposals were also part of significant
reforms to meet the city and council’s ambitions by 2030.
24. The use of grey fleet was identified as a risk area which a significant risk being around transporting
service users in grey fleet vehicles.
23

Sickness Absence Update Report

The Committee received a report of the Head of Human Resources on the work being done to reduce and
manage sickness absence.
Members noted some key findings:
1. Comparison with other local authorities was difficult due to the implementation of different
policies across organisations.
2. Health and wellbeing of staff was a priority and a new service provider had been commissioned to
supply integrated occupational health, employee assistance and physiotherapy provision to
support requirements from April 2021.
3. Managing absence was an ongoing priority for teams and managers.
4. The highest percentage of reasons for sickness absence were Stress, Anxiety and Depression
(31.6%), and Musculoskeletal (11.6%).
5. Absence rates for different employee groups was proportionately high for disabled employees and
low for employees aged 16-24. The age profile of the workforce was a factor in looking at overall
picture.
In discussion and in response to Members questions the following points were raised:
1. It was difficult to look at longer term trends due to the significant events and impact of the past
year.
2. The percentage of working days lost in the Council due to stress, anxiety and depression were of
particular concern and it was understood that this may be impacted by mental health receiving a
greater focus and an increased willingness of staff to report mental health concerns. Members felt
it would be useful to see how the Council compared to other authorities and sectors for reporting
information.
3. Working days lost for black and minority ethnic employees and lower wage women was of
concern and there may be historical reasons as well as the current impact of Covid to consider.
4. The Workforce Strategy had employed targeted interventions using local organisations such as
Nilari to support black, Asian and minority ethnic staff, the introduction of mental health first
aiders, and the introduction of disability champions in collaboration with the Disabled Colleagues

Page 10

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

5.

6.

7.

8.

Network working directly with senior leaders. Action: The Head of HR to circulate further details
regarding the various interventions.
Members raised that the Bradford factor had been used in several organisations as a tool to clarify
the data around duration of absence, and it would be beneficial to understand whether the data
referred to single day absences or longer periods.
It was confirmed that Human Resources Policy mandated return-to-work interviews after a
sickness absence and was considered an important tool to support a dynamic workforce.
Member’s questioned whether it was possible to measure adherence to the policy and confirm
how many had been carried out. Action: The Human Resources Business advisor to progress.
Members sought assurances that sickness absence data was not being skewed due to staff who
may not request sick leave due to working from home. It was noted that staff could work in a
different way when working from home which might negate the need for requesting a sickness
absence.
The introduction of Health and wellbeing plans was a useful management tool to help managers
identify support needs that may have been lacking in the past. The process had been promoted
well with colleagues and was designed to build managers capability and enable structured
conversation. It was noted that it might take time for the process to be fully embedded in teams
and that it may not be appropriate for all staff.

Resolved - That the report and the work being done to reduce and manage sickness absence be noted.
24

Contingent Workforce Report - update

The Committee received a report from the Head of Human Resources providing an update on the
Council’s use of agency staff, interim managers and contractors.
In discussion and in response to Members questions the following points were raised:
1. The long-term relationship with Guidant had seen a reduction in spend. The use of high value
contingent workforce was to cover urgent need or absence
2. Guidant was often a pathway to a job in the council
3. The 2017 IR35 legislation had be rolled out recently in the private sector to categorise workers on
their employee status so taxed effectively. There were 7 categories inside of IR35 and a few
placements had been made outside of IR35.
4. The current affected workforce numbered 204 and there were 3 that were outside of the
legislation.
5. Members noted that use of the term contingency workers was a good definition and improved
upon use of the term agency staff.
6. Scrutiny Members had noted that the Council had also engaged Arcadis for contingency workers.
Officers confirmed that the organisation was a strategic partner for the Growth and Regeneration
Directorate to support capital project delivery.
7. Members raised concern that capital projects should be part of Human Resources reporting to
identify who was being employed and how much money was being spent. It was confirmed that

Page 11

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

the partnership was managed through Growth and Regeneration Directorate and not through
Human Resources.
8. There had been several examples of temporary agency staff being successfully employed, with 16
% of temporary assignments having moved into a permanent job and if converted after the
14week contract period no additional cost were payable to the council.
Resolved – that the report be noted.
25

COVID Recovery and Update

The Committee received a report from the Head of Human Resources providing a COVID-19 - workforce
and return to workplaces update since the last meeting of the Committee on 22nd July 2021.
In discussion and in response to Members questions the following points were raised:
1. There was cautious but managed approach to opening workplaces, with plans to review
arrangements and protocols in early October after taking government plans into consideration.
2. There were very different attitudes and genuine differences of opinion surrounding the return to
work and the current approach was supported by the trade unions.
3. Staff had exhibited similar patterns of behaviour to that seen in the City
4. It was confirmed that managers were undertaking Covid Risk assessments with staff, supporting
reasonable adjustments, and supporting people to do what’s right for them
5. With regards to compulsory vaccinations, consultation was currently taking place on a COVID-19
Vaccination Policy to comply with new legal requirements for those working in Registered Care
Homes to be fully vaccinated with effect from 11 November 2021.
6. It was confirmed that onboarding of new staff had been easily adapted and delivered well online
but was moving to in person processes in due course.
Resolved – That the report be noted.
26

Update on key HR matters

The Committee received a report of the Head of Human Resources providing updates on key Human
Resources matters that affect the workforce.
Members noted in particular:
HR policy consultations, national pay negotiations and the Senior Coroners Pay Settlement.
1. The Consultation on Covid vaccination policy. From November staff would be required to be
vaccinated in registered care homes. 78 workers were impacted and 71 had been vaccinated with
7 staff being able to be redeployed.

Page 12

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

2. National pay settlements. The National Employers had made a final pay offer of 1.75% from 1
April 2021. This offer related to the vast majority of the Council’s workforce and was being
consulted on.
3. Committee would need to consider whether to apply the proposed 1.5% pay settlements locally
for the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Directors.
4. Committee has oversight of the nationally agreed coroner pay settlement 2021 for the former
Avon area.
In discussion and in response to questions the following points were raised:
1. Members raised concerns over the legality of employers forcing employees to have the vaccine. It
was confirmed that employers had no discretion in this as it was a matter of law, although
currently limited to employees of registered care homes only. There was a probability that the
legislation may be extended to broaden the scope to further settings and a broader range of roles.
2. It was confirmed that employees in regulated settings must have evidence of a vaccine/covid pass.
Resolved – That the report be noted.

Meeting ended at 6.40 pm
CHAIR __________________

Page 13

HR Committee
Work programme 2021/22
Agenda items
(subject to confirmation)

Forthcoming meetings

22nd July (AGM)

23rd September

Page 14
16th December

28th April

Work Programme
Workforce Strategy - overview
Selection Committee – Size & Composition
Return to the Workplace



COVID Recovery and Update








Gender/Race/Disability/LGB Pay Gap
Sickness – thematic review
Workforce Spend
COVID Recovery and Update
Proposals for Employee Travel Policy
Information report on HR policy consultations,
national pay negotiations and Coroners Pay
settlement.
Staff Pulse Survey Findings
Apprentice Annual Report
Health Safety & Wellbeing Annual Report
Staff Led Groups Annual Report
COVID Recovery and Update
Pay Policy Statement
Update on Workforce Strategy
Pay Settlements for Chief Executives and Chief
Officers.
Common Activities Programme
Workforce Diversity Report
Avon Pension Fund annual report
Learning and Talent Development
Recruitment - thematic review















Agenda Item 7

17th February






HR Committee
Work programme 2021/22

Page 15

Agenda Item 8
HR Committee – Report

HR Committee
16 December 2021
Report of:

Alison Hurley, Service Director; Education Learning and Skills

Title:

Bristol City Council Apprenticeships Service

Ward:

Citywide

Officer Presenting Report:

Jane Taylor, Head of Service (Employment, Skills & Learning)
Darren Perkins, Apprenticeship Manager

Contact Telephone Number:

07810 506586 (Jane Taylor) 07795 446211 (Darren Perkins)

Recommendation
To receive an update on the progress of the Council’s apprenticeship provision for
departmental staff and staff employed within maintained schools
Summary
Update on progress with developing the Bristol Apprenticeships offer, levy funding and
joint working needed to embed apprenticeships as a primary source of staff
development and training aligned to workforce planning
The significant issues in the report are:
1. 672 apprenticeships in total since May 2017
2. Post pandemic apprenticeship starts growth
3. Levy spend £2.1m against contribution £5.2m
4. Levy funds expired significantly reduced this £ year @ £70k to Oct 2021

Page 16

HR Committee – Report

Policy
1.

This report and recommendation relates primarily to:
a) The Corporate Strategy makes a commitment to develop a diverse economy that offers
opportunity to all and makes quality work experience and apprenticeships available
to every young person.
b) The Organisational Improvement Plan makes a commitment to: support the recruitment and
retention of apprentices to the council (252 per annum by 2021) and make full use of the
apprenticeship levy to support learning and development and career progression.

Consultation
2.

Internal
Not applicable

3.

External
Not applicable

4.

Context
4.1 In May 2017 the Apprenticeship Levy was introduced requiring large employers to
contribute 0.5% of their salary bill into a Government managed fund for apprenticeship
training costs. These funds are retained for employer use for 24 months from transfer to levy
account (a digital ‘virtual’ funding system). After 24 months unspent levy funds are transferred
to HM Treasury. The Enterprise Act 2016 also introduced a public sector duty requiring local
authorities and others to ensure that each year public bodies start 2.3% of their staff onto
apprenticeships. Based upon BCC workforce at 31st March 2021 (including maintained schools)
this provides a target of 221 apprenticeships per annum.
4.2 Bristol City Council has been approved as a government contracted apprenticeship training
provider since 2002. At time of writing report a ‘refresh’ application has been submitted and
outcome awaited. We hold current OFSTED grade of 2 (Good) awarded Feb 2020 and our On
Site Bristol provision has been a vital component of the development of construction
apprenticeships in the greater Bristol area. This contracting and brokerage lent itself well to
BCC developing an employer provider model for the blended delivery of apprenticeships to
serve the needs of departments and other employers. This model was proposed and approved
by Cabinet in July 2017 and the Bristol Apprenticeship Service commenced in October 2017. At
present the service comprises 2 FTE staff within the Employment, Skills and Learning Team.
4.3 To ensure a continuation of high quality training the team worked with commissioning and
procurement and developed a dynamic purchasing system (DPS) which has so far approved 27
providers approved to deliver training in 21 separate specialist areas of learning. Due to the
impact of Coronavirus a refreshed procurement exercise (approved by Cabinet) was deferred
and planned completion is now expected March 2022.

Page 17

HR Committee – Report

4.4
During year to 31st March 2021 129 Council employees commenced new apprenticeship
programmes this is 1.35% of workforce and nearly 1% below our Public Sector Duty target.
However, the growth of numbers in final quarter with 72 starts recorded has been replicated in
first half of 2021/22 with 156 starts to-date and a further 20 starts expected this quarter. A
highlight of this activity has been the joint work with Corporate Parenting Manager, Liz Small to
create openings for care experienced young people to access an entry level apprenticeship
(Customer Service level 2) with flexibility to gain from working across different teams and
departments – including acting as Apprentice Ambassadors in schools – the first group has seen
5 young people flourish in their new roles. The wider offer has also expanded and we have
seen our first starts on Occupational Therapy and Public Health Degree Apprenticeships (level
7) and other schemes such as Improvement Technician (level 3) and Data Analyst (level 4).
The current pipeline has 36 additional apprenticeship starts due for quarter 4 and we are
receiving 7 applications per week from existing staff which should convert to 60 or more starts
before £ year end and achievement of Public Sector Duty. However, external recruitment of
entry level apprenticeships remains subdued.
4.5
Since our last report an Apprenticeship Stakeholder Group has been fully formed with
all Staff Led groups represented, Trade Unions and apprentice ambassadors and departmental
representatives. We have also developed an apprenticeships data and performance dashboard
(appendix 1). This group meets regularly and feeds into the planning and development of the
service and also the interaction with BCC Talent and Development Steering group which
provides Governance. Championed by the Young Professionals Network and their senior
sponsor we have proposed consideration of developing a Council-wide entry level rotational
apprenticeship scheme that would allow (subject to funding of salary costs) targeted
recruitment of young people and positive action with a scheme that provides broad insights
into Council roles/teams/departments. This project will need further consideration including
HR and Finance input but we hope could us help create a long term talent pipeline which spans
early careers through to senior leadership. A presentation to Talent & Development Group
(appendix 2) was positively endorsed and follow up actions are now underway with HR and
Organisational Development.

4.6 Since May 2017 BCC has contributed £4.74 million to the levy and this has generated a
government top up of £480,000 providing a total input of £5.21 million. To date £2.1 million
has been spent and we have a further £1.03 million committed spend over next year at a rate
of £86,000 per month (up from £45,000 per month in Feb 2021) and this should increase to
monthly spend of £95,000 per month by January 2022. However, we still need to continue the
increased rate of spend to prevent continued sums expiring to Treasury. Fully meeting our
public sector duty target would now increase spend to approximately £110,000 per month and
we will need to increase starts to approximately 240 per annum or an average of circa 350 staff
on programme at any one time to fully utilise. In the year to March 2021 levy expiry – meaning
funds lost from our apprenticeship levy account totalled £498,846.23 at a rate of £41,500 per
month. Whilst this rate of attrition has been significantly reduced – a total of £70,954.37 April
to October 2021 or £10,100 per month has expired.

4.7 We continue to see a disparity with many Council departments creating opportunities at a
rate equal to 2.3% but maintained schools continuing not to engage in or utilise the scheme

Page 18

HR Committee – Report

with some barriers. The team continue to work with Trading with Schools and direct
engagement with schools that has produced new apprenticeships in different schemes such as
Operations Manager (level 5) and we hope to build upon this so school’s can benefit more
widely. Appendix 1 provides further information on these results reflecting activity since April
2021 when we introduced a new monitoring scheme.
Proposal
5.
This report is being presented to HR Committee for information and discussion of options to
increase our apprenticeship expansion in line with our public sector duty and through our Levy fund.
Committee Members can provide support with promoting apprenticeships in the City Council and local
schools, and also through the Levy Sharing scheme.
Other Options Considered
6.

Covered above

Risk Assessment
7.1 The risk that Bristol City Council may not fully utilise our apprenticeship levy is included in
the People Directorate Risk Register and continues to be reported upon. A number of mitigating
actions identified to enable us to accelerate apprenticeship recruitment are now under way:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

v)

An apprenticeships internal marketing campaign backed by internal communications and
regular drop ins and information sessions for staff and managers
Improved system for monitoring departmental performance and reporting to senior
leadership
Focused activity linked to maintained schools
Joint working with Local Government Association and Marine & Natural Environment to
create a workforce and succession plan underpinned by more extensive targeted use of
apprenticeships
Participation in West of England Share to Support scheme which connects us to local
employers and is supporting 11 organisations/SMEs to recruit 27 local apprentices in
construction, health and social care, policing, security systems and digital media

The provision of directorate and team targets

Public Sector Equality Duties
8a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under

Page 19

HR Committee – Report

the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
8b)

Our public sector equality duties are being fully considered and implemented through our
apprenticeship planning, promotion, recruitment and reporting. An equality impact
assessment was initially prepared when the Apprenticeship Service was created. A second
equality impact assessment is currently being prepared in relation to the Levy Sharing Scheme

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not applicable
Financial
(a) Revenue
Not applicable
(b) Capital
Not applicable
Land
Not applicable
Personnel
not applicable
Appendices:
Appendix 1. BCC Apprenticeship Starts

Page 20

HR Committee – Report

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: None

Page 21

Apprenticeships Dashboard
Headlines
1) Apprentice starts April to Oct 21 = 121 fully registered and 35 others commenced, placing us on target to achieve Public Sector Duty of 221
starts and in a good position re stretch target of 250.
2) On Site Bristol programme seeing record numbers of apprenticeship starts this year, currently 159 confirmed, an 85% increase on 2020.
3) 98% of total levy contributions were spent this month - next month will see a slight correction; underlying positive increasing trend
continues and predicted spend for next 12-months now exceeds £1.01m
4) Zero levy expiry this month.
Commentary
•
•

Page 22

•
•
•
•
•

Social Worker Degree Apprenticeship applications have now closed. Total of 6 new starts expected January 2022.
5 staff going through assessment for Systems Thinking Practitioner Degree Apprenticeship with Exeter University L7 to start in Jan 2022
– highly competitive process across whole of South West.
Starts on Project Management have been strong this Autumn and hope this trend will continue across the council. We are piloting a
new delivery route with current training provider
Caroline Fox, a Superintendent Registrar at the Registry Office in Bristol has been nominated for Bristol & Bath Outstanding
Apprenticeship of the Year as a finalist.
Apprenticeship Stakeholder Group supporting calls from YPN and other staff led groups for the introduction of a rotational
apprenticeship with central BCC support
A minimum of 20 additional starts in total are expected during October and November – Q3 end likely to be > 170 starts i.e. >57 per
quarter and well on target.
On Site Bristol programmes expansion is directly delivering over £450,000 of grant funding into Bristol construction employers and
providing record numbers of apprenticeships in support of the opening of City of Bristol Colleges Advanced Construction Centre.

Apprenticeships Dashboard

Page 23

Apprenticeships Dashboard

Page 24

Apprenticeships Dashboard

Page 25

Apprenticeships Dashboard

Page 26

Apprenticeships Dashboard

Page 27

Apprenticeships Dashboard

Page 28

Page 29

Apprenticeships
Talent Development Board
28/10/2021

Apprenticeship report

Page 30

April to September 2021
• 93 fully registered apprentice starts
• 23 others commenced and
completing on boarding process with
college
• 48 expected starts minimum in
October and November
• On target to meet public sector duty
of 214 starts and stretch target of 250
by April 2022
• Expired levy in September of £31,577

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Idea: To create an apprenticeship pilot that would
provide an individual to have exposure to different
functions of BCC, similar to that of a graduate
programme

Page 34

Rotational
Apprenticeship pilot

• Providing a meaningful experience which would
enable the individual to attain knowledge and skills
• Opening doors to careers/functions that an
individual may not have considered
• Enabling teams to participate and attract new
talent to the business and open the eyes of what
they do, to apprentices
Great opportunity for BCC to gain a new audience and
focus on our identified target groups, providing a
similar opportunity to University Graduate scheme

Reasons and rationale for this pilot

Page 35

Desire to make BCC an
accessible employer for all YPN and supported from
EmbRACE, DCN and Trade
Unions

Supports our objective to
reduce the age profile, BCC
currently on 3.8% of headcount
for 16 to 24 year olds.
(improved .3% from 2020 due
to increase in apprentice starts)

Removes the limitation of an
apprentice being in just one
area of the business.

A strategic approach that has
long term benefits for
succession planning.

Apprentices to see the bigger
picture

Fully support from Staff led
groups and Trade Unions

Futureproofing our workforce
and developing our future skills
now

Bristol Council to lead on this –
Good news story, PR
opportunity

Renishaw Model
At the end of each placement the apprentice
would give a presentation on what knowledge,
skills and behaviours they have learnt

Page 36

• 2 year apprenticeship
• 4 months in each business
function x 3
• Final 6 months in chosen
placement or another
function

Managers would each have an overview of the standard and would agree specific activities
within the team to ensure they could supply all evidence for EPA
First 4 apprentices undertaking achieved highest
grade at their EPA – Distinction

Our ask of you

Page 37

1. Support for the
apprenticeship
rotational pilot
programme

2. Ideas for department
sponsors and mentors

3. Commitment from
BCC Senior Leaders to
invest in this scheme –
finance and resources

4. Guarantee a job on
successful completion

Page 38

Discussion and questions

-

Agenda Item 9
/u

HR Committee
16th December 2021
Report of:

Director of Workforce and Change

Title:

Health, Safety and Wellbeing Annual Report

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Christina Czarkowski-Crouch, Head of Safety, Health and
Wellbeing

Contact Telephone Number:
07795 446270
Recommendation
That the Committee notes the report and provides it views on the work being done to improve
performance and culture for health, safety and wellbeing.
Summary
The purpose of this report is to update on the corporate arrangements for how health, safety and
wellbeing are being managed, providing assurance on key areas of work and setting out the
improvement plan for 2021-2022.
The significant issues in the report are:
- Revised roles and responsibilities for health and safety to ensure our governance and accountabilities
are properly understood and discharged.
- Implementation of new Health, Safety and Wellbeing Strategy.
- Provides information on Accident and Incident Data and Enforcement Activity from the Health and
Safety Executive (HSE) 2020-2021.
- Outlines the audit programme completed for 2020
- That the Committee notes the report and provides it views on the work being done to improve
performance and culture for health, safety and wellbeing.

Page 39

Policy
1.

An engaged, healthy and safety workforce will have an impact on the quality of service that we
provide to citizens and help achieve the corporate strategy priorities.

Consultation
3.

Internal
The annual report been agreed by CLB and discussed and agreed at the Corporate Safety
Consultative Committee.

4.

External
Not required because this report is for information only.

Context
5.
This report provides the HR Committee with an update on health, safety and wellbeing
performance across the Council and ongoing and developing activity to improve and manage health,
safety and wellbeing.
6.

The attached report (Appendix A) covers the following areas:
-

Governance Arrangements
Enforcement Activity
Audit and Risk
Training and Learning
Incident Reporting
Wellbeing and arrangements for Occupational Health and Employee Assistance
Programme
Fire Safety
Covid-19 activity

7.
This report is a statement of the Councils occupational health, safety and wellbeing performance
to the end of the financial year 2020-2021 and to the date of writing. It also includes our improvement
plan for 2021-2022.
Key Findings
8.
A revised Health and Safety Policy sets out clear roles and responsibilities throughout the
organisation and allows the Council to discharge its duties effectively.

9.
The new strategy for Health, Safety and Wellbeing seeks to deliver a safer healthier and more
resilient work environment with a sustainable culture.

Page 40

10. There have been no enforcement actions from the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and any
visits during the Covid Pandemic were satisfactory.
11. The Corporate Health, Safety and Wellbeing team carried out 142 monitoring visits including
visits to schools to ensure that our buildings and staff were Covid safe and secure. Follow up
monitoring visits are ongoing.
12. There is an action plan in place to respond to the internal audit on the Corporate Health and
Safety Monitoring System (CHaSMs). This is a self-assessment tool used by managers to report their
performance.
13. We continue to review and revise our health, safety and wellbeing training and development
offer to ensure compliance and improvement.
14. From April 2021 we commissioned a new service provider to supply integrated occupational
health, employee assistance and physiotherapy provision to support our requirements.
15. Our overall levels of incidents reported have reduced for the period of 2020 - 2021. However,
there is an increase in the reported numbers of violent and aggressive incidents. We are currently
working alongside colleagues to make several changes and improvements in this area.
Proposal
16.

That the Committee notes the report and provides it views on the work being done to improve
performance and culture for health, safety and wellbeing.

Other Options Considered
17.

None

Risk Assessment
18.

Not required because this report is for information only.

Public Sector Equality Duties
15a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

Page 41

-

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
15b)

The report provides analysis of the impact of sickness absence in relation to age, gender, sexual
orientation, race and pregnancy and maternity related absence.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not required because this report is for information only.
Financial
(a) Revenue
(b) Capital
Not required because this report is for information only.
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
A
Annual Health Safety and Wellbeing Report
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None.

Page 42

Annual Health, Safety and
Wellbeing Report

Workforce & Change
November 2021

www.bristol.gov.uk

Page 43

1.

Executive Summary .............................................................................................................. 3

2.

Governance and Accountability ............................................................................................ 3

3.

Enforcement Activity ............................................................................................................ 4

4.

Audit and Risk ...................................................................................................................... 4

5.

Training and Learning ........................................................................................................... 5

6.

Incident Reporting ................................................................................................................ 6

7.

Wellbeing ............................................................................................................................. 8

8.

Reasonable Adjustments ...................................................................................................... 8

9.

Occupational Health and Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) .......................................... 9

10. Health Surveillance ............................................................................................................. 10
11. Fire Safety Management ..................................................................................................... 10
12. COVID-19 Pandemic............................................................................................................ 11
13. Key Areas of Work .............................................................................................................. 12

Page 44

1. Executive Summary
1.1

This report is a statement of Bristol City Council’s occupational health, safety and wellbeing
(HSW) performance to the end of the financial year 2020- 2021and to the date of writing
the report. It also includes our improvement plan for 2021-22. The health, safety and
wellbeing strategy agreed in April 2021 underpins everything we do.

1.2

Our improvement plan for the coming year considers the current performance analysis
taken from the Corporate Health and Safety Management System (CHaSMs), accident and
incident, occupational health and EAP data and the HSW pressures driven by the COVID-19
Pandemic.

1.3

The report updates Corporate Leadership Board (CLB) on progress of the corporate
arrangements for how health, safety and wellbeing are being managed.

2. Governance and Accountability
2.1

Accountability for our duty of care to our employees under the Health and Safety at Work
Act etc. 1974 and the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 sits with
the Chief Executive Officer of the Council who is the Safety Director. Arrangements
describing how this accountability is discharged are outlined in our revised Corporate Policy
Statement, Organisation and Responsibilities Policy, with roles and responsibilities
dispersed throughout the organisation. This policy has now been through the final stages of
consultation and approval at the Corporate Leadership Board (CLB) and Corporate Safety
Consultative Committee (CSCC).

2.2

The Council’s Health, Safety and Wellbeing Strategy 2021 to 2026 has been informed by,
and is developed to support, the Bristol City Council Corporate Strategy 2018. The strategy
has been devised to engage all staff and their representatives to improve the efficiency
and effectiveness of our health, safety and wellbeing management system allowing us to
deliver a safer, healthier, and more resilient work environment. It seeks to encourage and
enable a positive, sustainable, safety, health and wellbeing high performing culture.

2.3

The strategy sets out the principle strategic aims alongside the 5 strategic priorities and
forms part of our improvement plan.
 Leadership and Commitment
 Risk Control
 Communication and Engagement
 Training and Competence
 Performance Management

2.4

Positive progress has been made reviewing the existing governance and assurance
arrangements. Quarterly reports are now submitted to the Corporate Leadership Board
and Extended Directorate Management teams (EDMs) for Resources, People and Growth
and Regeneration. This provides an improved level of assurance on key matters of health,
safety, and wellbeing.

2.5

Each Directorate continues to have a health and safety meeting as part of the ongoing
governance arrangements for communication and engagement on matters of health safety

Page 45

and wellbeing to raise matters of concern in relation to the health & safety of the
employees they represent, or where those matters cannot be resolved at a local level.
2.6

The Corporate Health and Safety Consultative Committee continues to meet quarterly. It
continues to discuss and make recommendations relating to health, safety and welfare
matters which relate to issues which are of a corporate(strategic) nature.

2.7

In addition, there is a Project Board developing the Corporate Landlord model which will
greatly improve the way in which we respond to Landlord and Built Estate risks and the
most significant liabilities across the built estate.

2.8

A new digital incident reporting platform has now been purchased. This is an extension to
the platform used by the Risk Management Service. The new system is due to be
implemented over the next 3 months. It will transform the way in which we are able to
record, track, and analyse incident information in real time; providing greater potential for
learning to be shared across the organisation and timely remedial actions taken to prevent
recurrence.

2.9

COVID-19 pressures delayed some of the planned work on policy revision throughout
2020/2021.

3. Enforcement Activity
3.1

There have been occasions when both external and internal agencies/teams have needed
to serve formal notices on the authority to seek improvement or prohibit an operation.
During 2020-2021 there has been no enforcement activity from external agencies.

3.2

The last Notice from the HSE was signed off on 31st March 2020. We met with the HSE in
December 2020 to ensure our systems of inspection, maintenance and repair were still in
place for street lighting. There was no further action following this visit.

3.3

There has been one prohibition notice related to COVID-19 served by a member of the
Corporate Health and Safety Team. Corrective action was taken quickly by the manager to
the building that was found to require some of the risk controls relating to COVID-19 to
require strengthening to ensure the building did not pose a significant risk to the public.

4. Audit and Risk
4.1

The audit programme for 2020-2021 focussed on COVID-19 ensuring that buildings and
schools were COVID-19 safe. A total of 142 premises were audited against the government
criteria (risk assessment, cleaning and hand hygiene, social distancing, arrangements for
people working from home, and additional contingency and risk controls for <2 metres). 54
Corporate buildings and 88 maintained schools were issued with a COVID-19 safe and
secure certificate.

4.2

Ongoing monitoring of these buildings has continued with follow up visits as appropriate.
The HSE during this time made several unplanned visits across our sites including schools to
check our arrangements for COVID-19. No action was required following these visits.

4.3

Our Internal Audit team undertook an audit of that focussed on the Managers Health and
Safety Self-Assessment (CHaSMs) process. The outcomes from the audit provided limited

Page 46

assurance which means that there are weaknesses in the risk management, internal
control, and governance processes which places service objectives at risk. Key areas of
weakness were found to be in the following areas:
 Poor understanding of H&S roles and responsibilities.
 Training and understanding – several managers at all levels confirmed that
mandatory training has not been completed
 H&S Review and Reporting – inconsistency in the completion of CHaSMs resulting in
missing health and safety data.
 Ineffective health and safety risk management - several managers viewed the
CHaSMs exercise as tick box rather than an effective tool for managing H&S risk
 H&S risk Management – greater support required for complex and specialist risk
assessment some H&S risks may not be effectively managed currently.
 Procedure for Accident and Incident Reporting is not clear.
4.4

Management actions are in place with agreed timescales to address these shortcomings.
These actions form part of the overall performance improvement plan for the Corporate
Health Safety and Wellbeing Team.

4.5

The 6 monthly CHaSMs return showed an improvement in the overall level of compliance of
completion. There is further work to do to ensure consistency of approach and ensuring
that the information is being completed by the right people and the right level. Outcomes
of the 6 monthly CHaSMs returns has been shared at CLB and all EDM’s. Work is ongoing to
ensure an accurate list of service managers and returns, and improvements plans based on
the outcomes.

4.6

The CHaSMs outcomes will form part of the Corporate Health Safety and Wellbeing Audit
programme for 2021 -2022. Each Head of Service is responsible for producing a health
safety and wellbeing improvement plan which will include all areas of amber and red
outcomes.

5. Training and Learning
5.1

A focus on compliance with mandatory training has continued during 2020-21. The basic
programme of training includes induction, managers training, stress risk assessment, lone
working and stress resilience and wellbeing. Achieving compliance with mandatory
training is fundamental to achieving a pro-active approach to health, safety, and wellbeing,
and raising the general ability of employees at all levels to make informed decisions on the
management and escalation of risk.

Page 47

5.2

Publishing performance data in this area will support service areas to achieve compliance.
Delivery methods, content and record keeping is currently being reviewed so we can
provide consistent and reliable data and have a thorough understanding of mandatory
training compliance. Table 1. Illustrates core training delivered by Corporate Health Safety
and Wellbeing Team.
Table 1.
Training Delivered
Core Health and Safety for Managers
Stress Risk Assessment
Lone Working
Stress Resilience and Wellbeing
Fire Safety
Management of Legionella

Number of
Sessions
17
4
5
4
11
7

Number of
Attendees
120
30
74
55

6. Incident Reporting
6.1

We record all our accidents and incidents. Reporting certain incidents is a legal
requirement. The legal report informs the HSE about deaths, injuries, occupational
diseases, and dangerous occurrences, so they can identify where and how risks arise, and
whether they need to be investigated. For the purposes of RIDDOR, an accident is a
separate, identifiable, unintended incident that causes physical injury. This specifically
includes acts of non-consensual violence to people at work. The following accidents are
reportable: death, specified injury to workers, over 7-day injury to workers, injuries to nonworkers, occupational diseases and dangerous occurrences and some gas incidents.

6.2

The current areas of concern from those accidents that have been reported as a F2508 are:
 Violence and Aggression – physical and verbal
 Moving and Handling – people and objects
 Stress
 Slips and Trips
 Asbestos exposure

6.3

We are currently updating the existing Accident Incident Reporting system so we can
provide better performance information in respect of incidents, to enable a greater analysis
of themes and trends.

6.4

The data currently provided is for the period April 2020- March 2021. Currently accident
incident data is provided to the Corporate Safety Committee on a quarterly basis. The new
system will allow for information to be published monthly for each directorate and data on
a rolling period. It will provide real time data for the Corporate Health, Safety and
Wellbeing team to respond to. Additional KPI’s are being introduced for investigation times
and closure of all incidents.

6.5

Figures are based upon the accident / incident data presented to the Corporate Safety
Consultative Committee (CSCC) during 2020/21. These figures relate to incidents reported

Page 48

to the HSE on the Form F2508, they include incidents such as fractured legs, absence from
work for over 7 days after an incident. As stated previously the authority's accident/incident
database is a real time data base, and as such the comparison figures quoted are based
upon the figures from last year’s annual report, and these figures may not tie up with the
figures produced more recently due to late reporting of incidents.
6.6

The total number of accidents / incidents recorded for the period up to 31 March 2020 was
846 (1391).
The split between accidents, and violent incidents for the period is 401 (766) accidents and
445 (625) incidents involving violence and aggression. Accidents decreased by 365
incidents, and violent incidents decreased by 180 incidents
Table 1 – Total number of Incidents 20/21
Type

2020/21

2020/21
Variation
from 19/20

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

Accidents

401

-365

766

1044

1066

Aggression /
Violence

445

-180

625

679

731

TOTAL

846

-545

1391

1723

1797

Table 2 – Total number of Incidents per Directorate 20/21
Directorate

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

Adult Children &
Education

657

965

1168

1262

Growth &
Regeneration

160

315

505

448

Resources

29

111

50

87

TOTAL

846

1391

1723

1797

Table 3 – Total number of RIDDOR (F2508) per Directorate 20/21
Directorate

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

2017/18

Adult Children &
Education

14

20

23

29

Growth &
Regeneration

16

10

32

27

Resources

1

0

0

2

TOTAL

31

30

55

58

Page 49

6.7

The number of Reportable Incidents (RIDDOR F2508) to the HSE remains high. Working with
Services and ensuring that they have adequate controls in place for areas such as Asbestos
exposure we would want to reduce the number of F2508 reports to the HSE by working
with Services to ensure that they have adequate controls in place to reduce the risk of
injury and/or ill health to our employees and other. Lessons learnt form incidents will be
shared across Directorates.

6.8

Currently near miss reporting does not happen. The Council should encourage near miss
reporting. This would be a marker of a positive reporting and learning culture and support
the decrease of lost time incidents and F2508 reports.

Key Areas of Work and Outcomes

7. Wellbeing
7.1

The Wellbeing of employees is of paramount importance. The Corporate Health, Safety and
Wellbeing Team have specialists within the service to support the wellbeing agenda.

7.2

Work continues across all directorates to deliver their wellbeing and resilience priorities.
Our specialist team continues to work collaboratively with several directors and has created
bespoke courses to help teams with their resilience and stress. Where appropriate we have
used external specialists to support this ongoing work. Wellbeing workshops and training
have been extended through COVID-19 to our existing offer.

7.3

We have commissioned National Mind E-Learning on managing ‘Mental Health at Work’.
This has helped many managers working from home to identify and respond to employee
wellbeing and supported sensitive conversations.

7.4

The Mental Health First Aiders group has now been established. Membership includes two
Directors from the Council. Their leadership is helping to embed the role as part of everyday
wellbeing.

7.5

We continue to offer mediation to support complex psychological issues and sign post on to
other appropriate services. This helps managers to address behaviours that do not meet
our Corporate values and behaviours.

8. Reasonable Adjustments
8.1

During COVID-19 lock down the service has continued to provide day to day casework
support to staff and the organisation regarding disability and long-term condition related
reasonable adjustments, via an adapted model of remote service delivery.

8.2

In addition to this:
 the DSE assessment and loan library has been established at City Hall
 the DSE information has been refreshed and updated on The Source to reflect
healthy home working and
 the provision of remote DSE/Workstation assessments and advice has been
developed.

Page 50

8.3

Collaborative working with the Disabled Colleagues Network has continued and progress
has been made to develop a Reasonable Adjustments training package for managers. The
delivery of this training is due to start during Q3 2021/2022. Additional resources and new
pages via the Source have been made available for disability and health condition
adjustments. This has also included updated and additional information about Access to
Work. Further collaborative working is ongoing with HR and Learning and Development to
embed relevant information into current processes and procedures.

8.4

A key challenge remains that users of Dragon voice recognition software that’s previously
been used to support colleagues with dyslexia and other disabilities have not been able to
use it since moving over to Windows10 and our new laptops. Whilst colleagues cannot use
Dragon on Win10 laptops at present, their Win7 laptops are still fully functional in the
meantime. The issue lies with the software vendor, rather than BCC IT colleagues, and is an
issue with several organisations including DWP*.

8.5

We recognise that this issue is having an impact on colleague’s mental health and wellbeing
and potential productivity. We will continue to provide the necessary support during this
time but would look for this to be resolved as quickly as possible.

9. Occupational Health and Employee Assistance Programme (EAP)
9.1

We have procured a new provider for Occupational Health. Our new provider is
Health Management Ltd (HML) and they are providing an integrated medical service
for Occupational Health, Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) and Physiotherapy
service. They are the one stop shop for Occupational Health support from
Management Referrals to New Starters, Workstation Assessments, Physio and EAP.
Schools can buy into this service.

9.2

Between April and June 2021 there were 274 referrals made to OH. 93% of the referrals
were triaged to remote OHA assessment. The largest referring department was Children's
services (62) and Adult Social Care (56). Mental Health Disorders (MHD)accounted for 82
referrals, 28% of all referrals to OH. The main reason for referral was stress and anxiety. The
largest referring department was Children’s Services (22).

9.3

Musculoskeletal (MSK) accounted for 106 referrals, 36% of all referrals to OH. The main
reason for referral was thoracic and lumbar.
The largest referring department was Adult Social Care (31).

9.4

Our Health Surveillance Programme will be run through HM. Work has been
undertaken by the Corporate Health Safety and Wellbeing Team to identify which
employees require Health Surveillance in relation to the job that they do and the
frequency of that Surveillance.

9.5

All employees have access to the EAP helpline Monday-Friday; they offer a range of help
and support, not only relating to work but other lifestyle issues, such as bereavement,
finances, and lifestyle changes. The EAP service is now able to address all levels of risk low,
moderate and severe.

9.6

EAP received 78 calls just for some information and advice and others receiving immediate
emotional support and were then signposted into self-help resources. Throughout this
reporting period Vita identified 28 callers as needing more support than what the helpline

Page 51

could offer and of them 4 calls were signposted to structured wellbeing support. 12 calls
were signposted to Guided Self Help - this is for low to moderate ill mental health and 12
were signposted to Counselling - this would be for what would be called a life stressor. (For
example: a relationship breakdown, probate, moving to a new house).
9.7

During the first 10 months of COVID-19 additional counselling support was made available
through the Nilaari Agency. These services supported some of our Black Asian Minority
Ethnicity colleagues with their emotional wellbeing and mental health during COVID-19.

10.Health Surveillance
10.
1

Health surveillance is a scheme of repeated health checks which are used to identify ill
health caused by work. Health and safety law requires health surveillance for our workers
when they remain exposed to health risks even after we have put controls in place. Health
risks which require health surveillance for Bristol Council staff include noise, vibration, and
substances hazardous to health.

10.
2

The Corporate Health Safety and Wellbeing Team have been working closely with Services
to identify the workplace hazards and controls and determine which areas of activity
require health surveillance.

10.
3

We have contracted 8 health surveillance days which will be delivered at 7 locations via a
mobile unit.

11.Fire Safety Management
11.
1

Development of the corporate health and safety Fire Procedure is part of the safety, health
and wellbeing strategy to develop consistent corporate procedures across all departments
of Bristol City Council. When the Corporate Landlord model is implemented the roles and
responsibilities will be reviewed and updated.

11.
2

The Bristol City Council procedure for Fire Safety Management is based on The Regulatory
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. The Fire Safety Order 2005 sets out our legal duties and
the HM Government Fire Safety Risk Assessment guidance documents give practical advice
on how to comply with those requirements. The guidance provides minimum standards for
protecting employees from risks associated with fire. The procedure covers all areas of
work activity where staff may be at risk from fire.

11.
3

The implementation of this procedure covers all areas of Bristol City Council. But does not
include partners where we deliver a service on their behalf but where we are not the duty
holder. Where Bristol City Council is the Landlord, we will ensure through different
arrangements that they follow the requirements set out in the procedure including
competent persons and appropriate management of contractors.

11.
4

The Fire Safety Management Procedure and Fire Safety Manual has been developed to
provide robust arrangements to ensure compliance with current fire legislation – the
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. This includes templates to develop suitable,
sufficient and risk appropriate fire precautions within buildings, and management systems
to enable the safe evacuation of people.

Page 52

11.
5

The Fire Safety Manual is designed to assist Managers, Head teachers and employees to
ensure that the premises in which they work is safe from fire. There is a project plan in
place to deliver its roll out. It is currently being piloted within the Library Service.

11.
6

All known buildings have a Technical Fire Risk Assessment in place. Risk profiling of
all buildings has taken place over the past year and we are now able to review risk
assessment on a risk-based approach.

11.
7

Local managers are responsible for ensuring that they review the risk assessments
on a yearly basis and report through the new fire safety reporting process. Any
action that is required following that review needs to be part of their management
action.

11.
8

CHaSMs will include Fire Safety Management as part of the next self-monitoring
exercise in November 2021.

12.COVID-19 Pandemic
12.
1

In March 2020 the Council activated emergency planning arrangements in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic. Our approach to COVID-19 and the management of a
biological hazard is presented below:
 All Government Guidelines have been followed since lockdown was
announced on 25 March 2020
 Much of our workforce were able to work from home, whilst the remainder
continued to support critical services to continue to operate across the City.
 Safe Systems of Work and delivered webinars talks based on corporate
master documents and adapted for different operational services as
appropriate.
 New risk assessment processes for individuals who are clinically extremely
vulnerable and clinically vulnerable are in place.
 A process for identifying cases of COVID-19 that required reporting as
RIDDOR was put in place, along with an internal track and trace
methodology.
 All corporate buildings have had a COVID-19 secure RA, and buildings have
been adapted to ensure the government guidelines can be followed.
 People working from home undertook a specific COVID-19 working checklist
and were provided with any DSE compliance equipment needed (including
specialist equipment where required)
 We worked closely with all our Maintained Schools, Education Leaders and
TU representatives reviewed and agreed COVID-19 risk assessments for all
maintained school.
 Maintained schools also completed COVID-19 assessments which included
Facilities Management such as Fire and Legionella.
 TU health and safety representatives had weekly meetings with the Head of
HR and Head of Health Safety and Wellbeing in support of HSW activities
relating to COVID-19.

Page 53

13.Key Areas of Work
The detail of the key areas of work are set out in the attached Improvement Plan for
2021/2022. Progress and outcomes will be reported quarterly to CLB EDM’s and the
Corporate Health and Safety Consultative Committee.
*The software issues with the vendor have now been resolved since this
report went to CLB.

Page 54

‘Healthy High Performance’ improving the lives, health and disability of our workforce and
preventing injury and ill health’
Theme

OBJECTIVE

PRIORITY

Deliverables

Leadership and
Commitment

Lead and engage
with our workforce
to improve
workplace safety,
health and
wellbeing

● Continue to focus
our activity on
tackling ill health as
part of our work
programme 20212022 will focus on
Mental health and
Wellbeing and our
three main causes of
absence

L1

Complete actions
and targets
identified in the
Workforce Strategy
S4.

Work –related stress
and anxiety

L2

Revise and publish
work related stress
guidance
information and risk
assessments

Musculoskeletal
disorders

L3

Colds Flu Cough
Infectious Diseases –
including COVID-19

L4

● Promote
proportionality in
health and safety
management

L5

Page 55

Develop programs
Continue with the
existing strategy for
COVID-19
Revise the current
Health and Safety
Policy
Develop a document
management
framework that
supports the Health
and Safety Policy and
sets out the policy
standards, detailed
roles and
responsibilities and
methodology for
preventing and
controlling risk in all
areas of activities,
services and
buildings. Revise
current guidance to
support the
framework and
explore the use of
technological
solutions where

appropriate for the
control of risk

Risk Control

Secure the effective
management and
control of risk

● Share the learning
from across the
Council with those
who can influence
workplace health and
safety performance
Use different
interventions to
assess and secure
effective
management and
control of hazards
and remove risk from
the workplace

L6

R1

R2

R3

Page 56

Develop and
maintain a Corporate
Safety Health and
Wellbeing risk
register and risk
profile
Develop annual
actions plans to
mitigate residual risk
associated to our
most significant
hazards. Eg Fire,
Legionella, Asbestos,
CDM,Stress,
Vibration and Nosie
Undertake a full
review of all
corporate Health
Safety and Wellbeing
documentation.
Develop a document
management
framework that
supports the Health
and Safety Policy and
sets out the policy
standards, detailed
roles and
responsibilities and
methodology for
preventing and
controlling risk in all
areas of activities,
services and
buildings. Revise
current guidance to
support the
framework and
explore the use of
technological
solutions where
appropriate for the
control of risk

R4

Target site
monitoring visits on
specific issues and
activities (high risk
and most significant
hazards), including a
sustained focus on
work-related ill
health such as stress
and musculoskeletal

Risk Profiling -

Page 57

Introduce an
information
governance
management system
to ensure all HSW
documentation and
records are accurate
correct appropriately
stored and contain
up to date consistent
information
(Sharepoint)
R5 Introduce the
Accident/Incident
reporting system
linked to the Claims
RM system
R6 Develop and online
risk assessment
procedure with a
standard electronic
template which has
an automatic review
trigger mechanism
R7 Introduce a system
which will use data
from CHaSMS,
monitoring visits and
incident
investigation actions
to track and close off
actions.
R8 Develop a
programme of site
monitoring visits to
check risk controls
are in place
R9 Revise Accident and
Incident Reporting
and Investigation
Procedure and
ensure that it is in
line with the HSE
Enforcement Model
R10 Risk profile each of
the areas of activity
linked to Services to
focus on the high
and medium areas of
risk.

Communication and
Engagement

Support our people
to be the best they
can.

Unlock healthy and
C1
high performance in
the workplace and
ensure that wellbeing
and resilience are key
enablers of staff
engagement and high
performance.

C2

C3

C4

Explain and help
colleagues to
understand our
strategy and
ambitions and how
we want to achieve
them
Help colleagues to
understand how we
need to work in the
future and what it
means for them

Page 58

Review risk
assessment process.
Support services to
undertake complex
risk assessments.
Strengthen links
between other
disciplines such as
RM, Equalities and
Learning and
Development to
further support
enhanced
partnership working
to achieve greater
efficiencies and cost
savings
Update our HSW
roles,
responsibilities, and
capabilities to
manage risk
Publish new
arrangements for
how we prevent
mental ill health,
promote wellbeing
and support
colleagues where the
need arises
Implement and
promote a safety
health and wellbeing
information line to
provide competent
advice

C5
Face to face and
virtual discussions

C6

Implement a new
HSW leadership
excellence
development
programme

C7

Training and
Competence

Ensure that the
level of
competence is
proportionate to
jobs and places of
work

Achieve a good
balance between
systems and
behaviours to
support good safety
health and wellbeing
management
Undertake a TNA and
competence
framework

C8
Implement HSG65
Plan Do Check Act
(PDCA) as a
methodology
T1

T2
T3
Performance
Management

Monitor Delivery
P1
through key
performance
indicators and targets

Annual Reporting

Page 59

Review existing
arrangements on
how we consult and
involve our
workforce on all
matters of health,
safety and wellbeing.
Develop a
communication
strategy to meet our
legal obligations and
obligation to consult
with employees TU
and others affected
by our work
activities

P2

Develop an
improved Safety
Health and
Wellbeing training
programme which is
cost effective and
reflects the needs of
the individual,
services and the
wider organisation
Develop a health and
safety passport
Expand our online
training provision
Set annual leading
and lagging KPIs
against an agrees
annual improvement
or completion target
(compare year on
year)
Produce Annual
Safety Health and
Wellbeing Report for
HR Committee

Reporting Cycle

P3

Audit programme

P4

Assurance and
Monitoring of key
stakeholders

P5

P6

P7

Page 60

Develop a
Dashboard MI to
report quarterly to
CLB and Safety
Committee
Develop an audit
programme which
responds to CHaSMs
and other key areas
of risk identified
through internal
audit. Accident and
Incident Data, OH
and EAP data
Develop adequate
arrangements to
ensure that we meet
the minimum
arrangements for
assurance of health
safety and wellbeing
with all Maintained
Schools
Develop adequate
arrangements to
ensure that we meet
the minimum
arrangements for
assurance of health
safety and wellbeing
with Bristol
Companies and
subsidiaries
Develop adequate
arrangements to
ensure that we meet
the minimum
arrangements for
monitoring and
assurance of health
and safety (CDM)
with all contractors
to ensure
consistency across
the Council

Agenda Item 10

HR Committee
16th December 2021
Report of:

Director: Policy, Strategy and Partnerships

Title:

Staff Led Groups – Annual Report

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Rebecca Baldwin-Cantello, Head of Equality & Inclusion

Contact Telephone Number:

0117 92 22000

Recommendation
That the Committee notes the report.
Summary
The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on the activities of staff led groups since their
terms of reference were refreshed in July 2020.
The significant issues in the report are:
- Progress update on the activities, spend and governance of BCC Staff Led Groups.

Page 61

Policy
1.

Diversity and Inclusion is a key theme of the Organisational Improvement Plan. This includes
enabling staff led groups to be more effective across the organisation. There is also an Equality
and Inclusion Strategy for the Council and it is a building block theme of the new Corporate
Strategy.

2.

Internal
The refreshed role of staff led groups was developed following extensive consultation and
engagement with both staff led group Chairs and the wider membership of the respective
groups. Corporate Leadership Board approved the new arrangements.

3.

External
Not required because this report is for information only.

Context
4.
Members of the committee received a report in January 2020 on the review of the staff led
groups and new governance arrangements have been in place since July 2020.
5.
There are four staff led groups. The embRACE network for Black, Asian and Minoritised
employees, the Young Professionals Network for employees under the age of 31, the Disabled
Colleagues Network and the LGBT+ Employee Group.
6.
In the Summer of 2019, independent consultancy support was commissioned to advise the
organisation on race equality and inclusion. Part of the brief included reviewing the effectiveness of
staff led groups. This also included their work programmes and priorities. New terms of reference and
governance arrangements for the staff led groups were agreed with the Chairs of the Staff Led Groups
and approved by the Corporate Leadership Board. These arrangements have been in place for nearly
18 months and will be reviewed in early 2022. Key highlights from the activities of each SLG are
detailed in Appendix A. There has been a wide range of activities undertaken but limited spend of the
allocated budget for most groups (apart from embRACE).
7.

Staff led groups have played a key role in supporting corporate processes such as:
-

Positive Action policy and toolkit
Equality and Inclusion Strategic Leadership Group and Directorate meetings
The review under the Equality Framework for Local Government
Talent Development Steering Group
Equality and Inclusion learning and development working group
National Staff Network Day
Equality visibility in the workplace working group
Diverse Voices feedback group
Corporate Strategy feedback group
Equality and Inclusion calendar
Sharing job opportunities/surveys/information/events with their membership

Page 62

Proposal
8.

That the Committee notes this report.

Other Options Considered
9.

None.

Risk Assessment
10.

Not required because this report is for information only.

Public Sector Equality Duties
16a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
16b)

Not required because this report is for information only.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not required because this report is for information only.

Page 63

Financial
(a) Revenue
(b) Capital
Not required because this report is for information only.
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
Appendix A – Key activities for Staff Led Groups
Appendix B- embRACE progress report
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: None

Page 64

Appendix A: Key Activities for Staff Led Groups
embRACE
1. Please see progress report provided at Appendix B.
Young Professionals Network (YPN)
1. New Chair and Head of Committee, Feb 2021: Caitlin Flint
2. 2 new Committee members taking total to 6, with two prospective members currently in
discussions.
3. Grown over the last year to around 190 members. Defined the upper age limit for members of
30 – anyone under the age of 31 can join.
4. Key priorities: main priority is to ‘increase recruitment and retention of young people within
the organisation’. Secondary priority is to create a social space where young people can meet
each other, however less activity since Covid started last year. Continued quarterly meetings,
which have been well attended over the past year. Undertook a BCC wide survey to understand
key issues for young people, including development needs and ideas for attraction and
retention. Fed in to the Apprenticeship Stakeholder Group.
5. Key accomplishments: running a successful 6 month mentoring scheme and planning for the
next one; creating a shadowing scheme; supporting embRACE’s work on increasing the racial
diversity of school governors; surveying young people within the council and sharing the
findings with senior leaders; holding a focus group with members on how to improve retention
and recruitment, and acting on the recommendations; organising a volunteering morning at
the Bristol Family Cycling Centre for members; weekly newsletter; organised a rotating slot for
all SLGs within the internal comms bulletin, which has greatly increased engagement. Only
budget spend this year has been to pay for training that embRACE organised to increase racial
diversity in school governing boards, which was £700.
LGBT+ Employees Group
1. Not as much progress this year due to pandemic, with many members of the LGBT+ Employee
Group having increased workloads or being temporarily reassigned. However, during the past
year the membership has increased and there are now over 130 members.
2. Limited budget spend on printing, lanyards and flags.
3. Key activities: Set up an LGBT+ Book Club, which meets every month and has been well
received. Feeding into the Equality and Inclusion team’s work to support Gender Identity and
transitioning in the workplace which is in its early stages.
Disabled Colleagues Network (DCN)
1. Key activities: Reasonable Adjustments Training and video planning, DCN Newsletter,
mentoring training and toolkit, working collaboratively with BCC to establish a project to
enable organisational accreditation as a Disability Confident Leader. DCN have also
commissioned the West of England Centre Living (WECIL) to support and advise on the
application. .
2. Also fed in to: Scrutiny Commission for People Directorate; Creative Solutions Board,
Disability Equality steering group, Changing Futures stakeholder workshop, reviewing
investigations policy, building walkthroughs to assess accessibility, reviewing EqIAs, testing
products, mental health first aid meetings, disability in the workplace best practice meetings,
National Disability Strategy meeting, Hybrid Working workgroups.
3. Limited budget spend on software and conference expenses.

Page 65

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

Bristol City Council

Quarters 1&2 2021-2022
Circulation to:
embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September)
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Progress Reports for:
Black Pound (Ethical and Equitable Investment Policy)
Communication & Events
Workforce Development
Leaving a Legacy
Human Resources
Equality and Inclusion (L&D)
Equality and Inclusion

Our Vision:
“Promoting and supporting BCC in taking positive actions for race equality and inclusion
by working in partnership with advocates and stakeholders. We will enable others to
have the courage to challenge and make positive cultural changes in the council, so that
it can best represent the communities we serve”.
Our Tag Line: Positive Change for Inclusion

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

66

1

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

Report Title:

Black Pound Update Report (Sponsor Denise Murray-Director of
Finance)

Date of
meetings:

embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September)
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Report Author:

Amanda Chappell

Contact
details:

Amanda.chappellbristol.gov.uk
Anesa.Kritahbristol.gov.uk
Graham.ClappBristol.gov.uk

Purpose of
Report:

To update of the work undertaken by the Black Pound Project Board.

Actions:

Action Key
Approval
A
Information only
I
D
Decision/Discussion

Tick
x

Link to
Purpose of this work:
Strategic E&I
- To address the economic inequalities and imbalances affecting Black
Action Plan:
businesses and entrepreneurs in the Bristol and amongst its diasporic
Positive Action
communities.
- To help assist adjusting economic inequalities that have affected the
Black community historically (exacerbated by COVID-19)
3 Workstreams:
1. Equality & Diversity in Procurement and Commissioning
2. Maximisation of Income and Pathways to Employment
3. Ethical and Equitable Investment Policy
Our Approach
Data void in this area therefore suggested approach:
Shorter term (1 mth)
• Options to be considered which will provide high level information to
support initial work – short engagement exercise or survey with a sample
of BSWN network businesses to assess the initial challenges and identify
the drivers for change.
Short term (circa. 3 mths)
• Further broader research to be commissioned by Economic
Development Team to assess need – with further specific research
elements which should include investment related questions.

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

67

2

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

•

Additional opportunities for containing this cost within existing resources
such as discretionary business support grant to be explored.

1. Diversification of the Supply Chain
In addition to the Social Value Policy and assessment of Modern-Day Slavery
risks, we will:
Phase 1
• Supplier diversity lead in Strategic Procurement & Supplier Relations,
dedicated to making a significant economic impact in the Black business
community: assess opportunities & lead action
• Ensuring that Black-owned and other diverse businesses have sustainable
opportunities to work with BCC (e.g., policy change around who is invited
to tender, making tender processes more supplierfriendly, and market
development activity)
• Improve the supplier diversity data we hold in our contract database and
develop monitoring and reporting to focus action and measure success
Phase 2 (following economic needs assessment)
• Promote use of known Black-owned and other diverse businesses (e.g.,
requests for quotes)
• Actively encourage and provide training for Black-owned and other
diverse businesses on how to register as potential suppliers to the Council
and on how our tender processes work.
• Ensure greater engagement with and use of Black-owned and other
diverse businesses (e.g., through co-design, research & stakeholder
engagement, and finding other opportunities to promote use of Black
businesses by other individuals and organisations)
*Work also ties into training sessions on public procurement & social value
(Oct/Nov) run as part of volunteering workstream being led by Change
Services – and work led by BSWN to promote VCSEs.

2. Maximisation of Income and Pathways to Employment
•

Triangulate the proposed economic needs assessment to understand
significant equality gaps, factor in the Corporate Debt Management
policy, in particular the areas around Collection and Recovery and

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

68

3

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

•
•
•

Social Inclusion.
Work alongside the above communities to co –produce the
identification and implementation of the targeted interventions
Potential collaboration with Bristol Works to co-develop pathways
from benefits to employment
Support the identification of baseline and mechanism for measuring
success and the lessons learned.

*Funds include housing benefit, council tax reductions schemes, local crisis
prevention funds, COVID financial support and emergency living expenses etc
3. Ethical and Equitable Investment Policy
• The proposal is to rewrite the Ethical Investment Policy which is currently
a practice statement incorporated in the Treasury Management Strategy
last updated in 2015.
• The aim is to ensure the Policy is aligned to BCC values, framework of
other ethical policies (e.g., environment policy, social value, modern day
slavery), is inclusive reflecting the aspirations of equitable access to
capital (Black Pound) and supports delivery of the Council’s strategic
objectives, hence ‘Ethical and Equitable’ Investment Policy.
• The Policy will cover BCC investments, primarily Treasury but not
exclusively, our future (not retrospective) non-Treasury investments such
as commercial property investments, City Fund, Community Bank, loans,
and other areas such as business support via income guarantees.
• The Policy will go beyond environment impact / issues from the
perspective of this workstream to include transparent principles to guide
decision making and equitable access to these facilities.
Our Next Steps…
•
•
•

“Task and Finish” review of the Ethical and Equitable Investment Policy
workshops with Councillors and external stakeholders
Internal sign offs through Decision Pathway (EDM, Directors at ELM and
cabinet member)
Aiming for Cabinet approval in November 2021

Next steps:

As outlined above

Report Title:

Communication &Events (Sponsor Steph Griffin- Service Manager
Corporate Communications, Internal Communications and

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

69

4

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

Organisational Development)
Date of
meeting:

embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September)
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Report Author: Aseye Negedu, Deanna Berry, Sade Philips, Vina Rajput, Kam Bhakerd &Amanda
Chappell
Contact
details:

Aseye.Negedubristol.gov.uk
Deanna.Berrybristol.gov.uk
Sade.Philipsbristol.gov.uk
Vina.Rajputbristol.gov.uk
Kam.Bhakerdbristol.gov.uk
Amanda.chappellbristol.gov.uk

Purpose of
Report:

To provide an update on the work of the embRACE Communication & Events
Working Group

Actions:

Action Key
A
Approval
I
Information only
Decision/Discussion
D

Tick
x

Updates:
Purpose of this work: To ensure effective and inclusive communications (2-way)
Effective and
with our members and key stakeholders. Respond to members needs by
Inclusive
Communication facilitating training and supporting events

8 Workstreams:
1. embRACE Microsoft Teams Platform (how we communicate)
2. embRACE Source Webpage Update (informing who we are and
what we do)
3. Recruiting New Members (providing a safe and inclusive space for Black,
Asian and Minority Employees)
4. embRACE events schedule (shared learning and collective wellbeing)
5. embRACE internal and external (horizontal and vertical) communications
(promoting what we are doing and to gain collective buy in and support)
6. Development of our collective vision, identity, branding, tag line and logo
(creating a shared purpose)
7. Learning and Development (supporting the individual and collective
development of our members)
8. Supporting social care staff who choose not to be vaccinated (supporting
members)
1. embRACE Microsoft Teams 365 Platform:

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

70

5

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

•
•

embRACE Microsoft Teams 365 Platform set up to enhance and facilitate
communications with our members (live January 2021)
Three Digital inclusion (Microsoft Teams 365) workshops held (Q1) for
embRACE wider members

2. embRACE Source Webpage Update
• embRACE Source page refreshed and updated
• Next steps to provide a link to access the MT 365 embRACE wider
members platform for new & existing members.
3. Recruiting New Members (reducing the risk of a 2-tiered council)
•
•
•
•

•
•

embRACE collaboration with HR & ICT to identify ‘off liners’ who do
not have access to a council email address and /or a laptop
Targeted communications to service managers to engage Black
and Minoritised Staff – using a data driven approach to target hot
spot areas
‘Join embRACE’ opt in function made available as part of the
embRACE events evaluation process during training and workshops
held to recruit new members (50 new members in Q1&2)
Work alongside department leads, equality champions and existing
platforms /processes (induction etc) to recruit and engage new
members
Invite letter sent out to all Black and Minority staff via HR (October
2021) -to home addresses
A men’s support group was set up during Q1, the uptake has
increased from 6 – 18 men during Q2. We will continue to engage with
our current male staff members and recruit to male dominated
service areas, such as housing via the off liner workstream (see above)

4. embRACE events schedule (not all events included)
•

•

A planned calendar of events that include both social and learning
events for members (some of which will be for committee members only
to foster good relationships, shared learning and enhance working
practices and shared outcomes)
We will develop a market and segmented approach to ensure that we
tailor our events around the cultural needs of staff and that we
communicate in a language that speaks to each audience.

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

71

6

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

•

•

•

•
•

•

We will engage with members to find out what they would like to be
included within the schedule and how they can lead or co -design the
events.
We will evaluate our events and the outcomes will inform how we
improve quality on a continuous basis and the impact for individuals and
the organisation.
Where possible, we will offer the events for free, whilst communicating
upfront on any associated costs for members, if we commission external
coaches (e.g., yoga, cultural events etc).
To minimise costs and to foster relationships, we will run some events with
our SLG peer groups and or equality champions etc.
Black History Month October 2021- Collaboration between all Bristol
Public Sector Organisation (e.g., Black Police Association, University of
Bristol BNSSG etc) staff led Groups (and some equality leads) with Steppin
Sista’s- “A long walk to freedom” October 17th. Black Lives Matter adult
social care team collaborating with embRACE to organise and market
the event.
Further work planned across the Public Sector Organisations- to develop
a suite of learning sets – each organisation will seek part funding from
their organisations (more info to follow)

5. embRACE internal and external (horizontal and vertical)
communications.

-

•
•

•

As a guiding principle we will:
Work alongside our members to co-design and evaluate our priority work
areas ongoing.
We will communicate what we are doing via the current and existing
platforms and work alongside our internal BCC communications team
and equality champions to articulate our key messages/requests to the
wider council and vice versa.
During covid-19 waves 2-4, embRACE facilitated weekly virtual covid-19
support bubble drop ins for members
A series of workshops were delivered to support staff who are
experiencing racialised trauma (following the George Floyd and BLM
movement) with a lens on individual and collective self-care (June
2021)
The report detailing the outcomes and the recommendations for the
above, will be shared September 22nd (initially with HR & L&D who

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

72

7

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

commissioned this work, and our directorate race sponsors – Christina
Gray and Alison Hurley)
6. Development of our collective vision, identity, branding, tag line, logo,
and our priority areas.
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Two workshops with members were held in October 2020 to review our
collective vision and to ensure that everything that we do links back to
our shared vision (see page 1)
As part of the workshops above, we co-produced our branding and logo
– as part of this we explored our individual & collective identity and the
impact of colonialism and hierarchy (based on skin colour and personal
characteristics)
We work to a distributed, values and inclusive led leadership model and
encourage all committee members to develop their leadership skills by
leading on our priority areas.
Our work plan priorities are based on membership feedback (we held 2
listening events in July 2020 to temperature check how staff were feeling
within an organisational context following the George Floyd murder,
Colston Statue toppling and the disproportionate impact of covid-19 for
Black and Minoritised communities). Prior to this a workshop was
facilitated in October 2019, by DWC Consultancy to identify priority areas
for staff led groups. Finally, we carried out a survey to gain feedback from
wider members to understand how we should rank the priorities and to
understand members perceptions around the role of the staff groups.
The priorities were also aligned to the BCC Equality Action Plan, following
David Weaver’s (DWC Consultancy) report ‘Transforming Race Equality’
at BCC (approved by Full council cabinet in August 2020)
A quarterly report will be made available to update committee
members, wider members, and senior leadership (equality sponsors and
champions etc). The updates to senior leadership, will be through the
new E&I governance structures
Working groups leads will meet regularly to develop their priory areas and
report back to the committee and update on any new developments
(with timescales specified for their overall objectives) on the MT 365
committee working group private channel
Working group leads will also meet with the embRACE chair to update
on key developments and to gain a steer, ensuring that their work aligns
with our aims and objectives and the various interdependencies and that

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

73

8

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

they are articulating our embRACE vision on behalf of our members when
attending strategic meetings
7. Learning and Development
• A skills audit was carried out amongst committee members in November
2020, in response to this a L& D schedule is being developed with L&D, it
is hoped that this will link into the Diverse Voices workstream (as this
opportunity is rolled out to staff at lower grades). The gaps identified in
the skills audit were influencing, advocacy, presentation skills and policy
development. Committee members have requested culturally
appropriate mentoring and coaching support and protected time to
lead on their areas of work.
• Following requests from wider members, a schedule of learning events is
being implemented with the support of L&D. This includes, interview skills,
project management etc
8. Supporting social care staff who choose not to be vaccinated
• Work alongside HR and the unions to support Black and Minority staff who
choose not to be vaccinated and to ensure that they are redeployed
into alternative employment
• Support to HR to develop the vaccinations policy
Next steps:

As outlined above in the update

Report Title:

Workforce Development Update Report (Sponsor- (Sponsor Steph
Griffin- Service Manager Corporate Communications, Internal
Communications and Organisational Development)

Date of
meeting:

embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September)
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Report Author: Tiayanna Ferguson
Kam Bhakerd (tbc)
Amanda Chappell
Contact
details:

Tiayana.Fergusonbristol.gov.uk
Kam.Bhakerdbristol.gov.uk
Amanda.Chappellbristol.gov.uk

Purpose of

To provide an update on the work of the Workforce Development Group

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

74

9

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

Report:
Actions:

Updates:
Equality and
Inclusion
Objectives:

Action Key
A
Approval
I
Information only
D
Decision/Discussion

Tick
x

Purpose of this work: To work in collaboration with and on behalf of our
embRACE members in partnership with the BCC Learning and Development
Team to ensure that Black and Minority staff are supported to be themselves at
work, treated fairly, given the opportunity to progress within an inclusive and
progressive organisational culture.
5 Workstreams:
1. Workforce Development Strategy (and implementation plan) (diversity in the
workforce, equitable succession planning and access to learning and
development)
2. Organisational Culture: Having uncomfortable conversations, flatter
hierarchies, balancing power and ensuring that everyone is valued and
encouraged to contribute
3. Talent Management (using a positive action approach to identify and nurture
talent amongst Black and Minority employees, developing pathways for
progression)
4. Diverse Voices (developing a greater sense of diversity in voice and decision
making throughout the council)
5. Supporting Adult Social Care WRES (ensuring Black and minoritised staff are
retained and given opportunities to develop, before and during the integration
of health and social care)
1. Workforce Development Strategy
• embRACE contributed to the development of the refreshed workforce
development strategy and implementation plan.
• EmbRACE are keen to:
- support the monitoring of the above and the impact for Black and
Minoritised staff
- Support any preceding or related policies to ensure a consistent approach
to race equality runs throughout
2. Organisational Culture
• Work alongside embRACE members, Learning & Development, race
equality sponsors, champions, and senior leaders to explore where

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

75

10

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

•
•

there are opportunities to improve the current organisational culture
(this has been the main issue fed back by wider members)
Develop further work at a department/organisational team level, that is
informed by the above.
Contribute feedback on the BCC cultural intelligence programme

3.Talent Management
Support the development of a talent management programme,
ensuring that a positive action approach is used to benefit Black and
Minoritised employees
• To ensure that talent management outcomes are aligned to succession
planning, WRES in adult social care, BCC directorate E&I action plans
alongside proposed restructuring and or redeployment plans – including
the common activities programme
• Work alongside members to co-design our approach and to understand
impact (ongoing)
4.Diverse Voices (DV)
• Support the development of the DV project, testing out the model with
embRACE committee and wider members (as part of the roll out to less
senior staff)
4. Supporting Adult Social Care WRES
• Contributing to each phase of the WRES workstream
• Facilitating focus groups and supporting Black and Minoritised staff to
inform the above
• Working alongside Black Lives Matter Working Group (ASC) in relation to
WRES
•

Next steps:

As outlined above

Report Title:

Leaving a Legacy Update (Sponsor Alison Hurley-Director of
Education and Skills)

Date of
meeting:

embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September)
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Report Author: Jing Guo, Joan Field-Thorne, Tiayanna Ferguson, Caitlin Flint (YPN), Chris Mayer
(School Governor Team) & Amanda Chappell
(a working partnership with BCC Young People’s Network, School Governor Team,
and external partners Led By embRACE)
Contact
details:

Jing.Guobristol.gov.uk
Tiayanna.Fergusonbristol.gov.uk

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

76

11

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

Joan.Field-Thornebristol.gov.uk
Amanda.chappellbristol.gov.uk
Caitlin.Flintbristol.gov.uk
Chris.Mayerbristol.gov.uk
Purpose of
Report:
Actions:

To provide the embRACE Committee Group with an update of the work
undertaken by the Leaving a Legacy Working Group.
Action Key
Approval
A
Information only
I
D
Decision/Discussion

Tick
x

Link to
Purpose of this work: To embrace our lived experiences, local knowledge,
Strategic E&I
cultural intelligence, and positions in the council to leave a legacy (make a
Action Plan:
positive difference) for those who will follow
Positive Action
4 Workstreams:
1.Black Careers Matter- working cross directorate (We Works for Everyone) and
with external agencies to develop a DWP bid
2. Diversity the Bristol School Governing Boards- Working in partnership with
Inspiring Governance, BCC School Governors team, YPN and others (Ruth
Pickersgill & Denis Lindsay) to deliver a School Governor recruitment event and
anti-racist training and support for existing Black and Minoritised school
governors
1.Inclusive Employment
• DWP application in progress to develop and deliver a range of specialist
services and resources to provide unique multi-agency employment
pathways and outcomes for Black and Minoritised People who
experience the trauma of racism and related complex risks and
challenges. Whilst the primary target group is young people aged 18-25,
the programme will also trial preventative activities with young people
transitioning from school and college (aged 15-17) and remedial
activities with older adults who are at risk of long-term unemployment.
• Current work underway to integrate the above into the existing Brighter
Futures and Changing Futures Programmes.
• The Bid and outcome will be shared in due course
2. Increase the Diversity of School Governors

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

77

12

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

•
•
•

City Wide school Governor recruitment event (23rd September). Opening
speech by Mayor Marvin Rees
A series of anti-racist training for school governors, the aim is to integrate
this into the existing and future school governor training programme
Support the set up of a Black and Minority school governor support
network across the city.

Next steps:

As outlined above

Report Title:

Quarterly Human Resource Update Report

Date of
meeting:

embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September)
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Report Author: Fiona Watson & Victoria De Portela e Prado
Contact
details:

Fiona.Watsonbristol.gov.uk
victoria.pradobristol.gov.uk

Purpose of
Report:

To provide an update on the work of the embRACE Human Resource
Operating Model Working Group

Actions:

Action Key
Approval
A
I
Information only
D
Decision/Discussion

Tick
x

Updates:
Purpose of this work: To create alternative pathways to identifying and
Effective and
reducing employee/manager (or other) conflicts early on, with a view to
Inclusive
Communication reduce grievances, absence, performance issues, avoidable organisational

exits, and redeployment for Black and Minoritised staff.
3 Workstreams: 1 outstanding (see succession planning below)

1.Grievience (reducing this amongst Black and Minoritised staff)
2. Performance Issues (reduce the number of Black and Minoritised staff who
are identified as having PI)
3. Disciplinaries (reducing this amongst Black and Minoritised staff)
4.Succession Planning, organisational Exits, and Redeployment (planning
ahead and retaining Black and Minoritised staff) – to link into WRES, restructuring
plans and the Common Activities Programmes. (to be developed)

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

78

13

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

1.Grievience
EmbRACE supported the update of the grievance policy
EmbRACE are currently working alongside HR to develop a monitoring
system, to understand the impact of the above for Black and Minority
staff (by ethnicity)
• EmbRACE will support the development of a route map for staff who are
experiencing challenges at work, many staff express that they do not
know where they can obtain help. The route map will be tested out by
Black and minoritized staff, so that we can gain a better understanding
of how the current processes work for Black and Minoritised staff and so
that we can identify how we support the organisation in de-escalate
issues early on. This will build on the existing work developed by David
Weaver (DWC Consultancy) who identified the disproportionate number
of Black and minoritized staff who have raised grievances.
• Support the development of an evaluation process to understand the
impact of the above and to provide recommendations.
2. Performance Issues
•
•

•

•

•

•

Gain an understanding of why performance issues are disproportionately
high amongst Black and Minoritised (by ethnicity) staff and work
alongside HR, Unions, and our embRACE members to support the
development of a series of recommendations (building on the work that
has already been completed by DWC Consultancy)
EmbRACE contributed to a survey that went out to all BCC staff recently,
the response from Black and minoritised staff was relatively low. The
responses from Black and minoritised men were even lower. We will
engage with our members to improve feedback.
EmbRACE and HR are currently exploring how we can engage with Black
and Minoritised (going beyond the use of surveys to engage) staff (men,
through our men’s support group and our off-liner project to achieve a
better response to inform any improvements).
Current data analysis underway to identify how many Black and
minoritised staff have been through the under-Performance process
over the last previous 3-5 years (as a comparator to non-Black and
minoritised staff). This work will also include, supporting information
including outcomes for staff – awaiting a HR report to guide this work.

3.Disciplinaries

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

79

14

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

•

Outstanding

4. Succession Planning, organisational exits, and Redeployment (planning
ahead, retaining and developing Black and Minoritised staff)
Support the development of a succession policy, with clear targets in
place, with the following included i) reduce the number of Black and
Minoritised staff who exit the organisation during and following
restructuring ii) reduce the number of Black and Minoritised staff whose
journey is via the re-deployment route because of restructuring. Iii)
increase the number of internal Black and Minoritised staff who move up
in pay grade because of restructuring iv) monitor the movement of Black
and Minoritised staff before and after any restructuring (to include
Common Activities and Integrated Health and Social Care
transformation) using robust before and after EQiA’s.
Other contributions made by embRACE
• EAP
• COVID-19 Risk Assessments
• Leavers and Exit Interviews
• Remote working
• Investigations
• Vaccination Policy
•

Next steps:

As outlined above

Report Title:

Equality and Inclusion (Learning and Development) Update Report (SponsorRebecca Baldwin- Cantello- Head of Equality and Inclusion)

Date of
meeting:

embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September)
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Report Author: Jolana Curejova
Contact
details:

Jolana.curejovabristol.gov.uk

Purpose of
Report:

To provide an update on the work of the Equality and Inclusion (L&D) Working
Group

Actions:

Action Key
Approval
A

Tick

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

80

15

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

I
D
Updates:
Equality and
Inclusion
Objectives:

Information only
Decision/Discussion

x

Purpose of this work: To support the development of the E&I Equalities and
Inclusion Learning and Development Training Plan.
1 Workstream:
1.Equality and Inclusion Learning and Development Training Plan (updating the
existing E&I training plan to impact change)
1. Equality and Inclusion Learning and Development Training Plan
• Develop a walking library to sit within the learning and development
portal (for managers) and to be shared via existing platforms e.g., SLT
blog, Source, Managers Bulletin, E&I team toolkit to aid conversations
about race at a team level.
• Support the development of an evaluation plan to monitor impact for
staff, using the Power BI Workforce Report and qualitative measures to
understand impact

Next steps:

As outlined above

Report Title:

Equality and Inclusion Update (Sponsor Rebecca Baldwin- Cantello- Head of
Equality and Inclusion)

Date of
meeting:

embRACE Wider Members Meeting (23rd September) &
The Strategic Leadership Group (12th October)
People Directorate E&I Meeting (23rd September)

Report Author: Nina Cain- Tairu
Rhianna Airey
Matthew Williams
Contact
details:

Nina.Cain-Tairubristol.gov.uk
Rhianna.Aireybristol.gov.uk
Matthew.Williams2bristol.gov.uk

Purpose of
Report:

To provide the embRACE Committee Group with an update of the work
undertaken by the Equality and Inclusion Working Group.

Actions:

Link to
Strategic E&I

Action Key
A
Approval
Information only
I
Decision/Discussion
D

Tick
x

Purpose of this work: To support the development of the refreshed Equality and
Inclusion Strategy & Policy to include the recommendations from David

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

81

16

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

Action Plan:
Weaver’s Report.
Positive Action To review the Equality impact assessment process and how this is used for key
decision making within the council and to support the development,
implementation, and evaluation of the Positive Action Policy
3 Workstreams
1. Provide a review and recommendations for the updated Equality and
Inclusion Policy & Strategy (2018-2023). Integrating David Weaver’s report
into the existing strategy.
2. A review and recommendations of the EQiA process (through a race and
socio economic- intersectional equality lens)
3. Co-design of the Positive Action Policy
1. Provide a review and recommendations for the updated Equality and
Inclusion Policy & Strategy (2018-2023). Integrating David Weaver’s
report into the existing strategy.
• embRACE contributed to the strategy & policy review and provided
recommendations using our lived experiences to enhance the quality of
the document and outcomes.
2. A review and recommendations of the EQiA process (through a race
and socio economic- intersectional equality lens)
• Review of the EQiA process
• Recommendations (extensive) submitted by embRACE to inform the final
version and to support translation of the policy throughout the
organisation through an implementation plan to provide training and
guidance, raise awareness and underpin decision making processes
3. Co-design of the Positive Action Policy
•
•
•

Next steps:

Review of the Positive Action Policy to inform recommendations
(underway)
Further work underway to co-design the implementation and evaluation
plan using both a data driven and lived experience approach.
Proposed an overarching positive action framework going beyond
workforce, to identify and align service led positive action initiatives
across the organisation

As outlined above

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

82

17

Bristol City Council embRACE Committee

Page
BCC embRACE Update Report Q 1-2 (2021-22)

83

18

Agenda Item 11

HR Committee
16 December 2021

Report of:

Director: Workforce & Change

Title:

2021 employee engagement surveys

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Stephanie Griffin (Head of Internal Communications and
Organisational Development)

Contact Telephone Number:

(0117) 92 23962

Recommendation
The Committee notes the report.
Summary
The purpose of this report is to update Committee on the results of the employee surveys and
engagement during 2021, and the actions taken as a result.
The significant issues in the report are:
During the last 18 months, the issues affecting our workforce have changed, and their needs continue to
evolve. This year, instead of our usual annual survey, we have undertaken short pulse surveys on topical
issues, which have enabled us to respond quickly to put the appropriate support in place.
We have responded to colleagues’ feedback and introduced a range of new support and guidance.
Alongside this, we have maintained an open and regular dialogue with the workforce on a range of
topical issues such as our Covid response, changes to the workplace, the draft corporate strategy and the
council’s financial position.
A recent internal audit on workforce management provided an overall opinion of reasonable assurance,
and a substantial level of assurance in respect of employee engagement.

Page 84

Policy
1.

The Corporate Strategy describes the aspirations for the future organisation, one where we
innovate and improve where we need to, ensuring the council is one that people are proud of
and which delivers its priorities to high standards.

2.

The Workforce Strategy outlines our commitment to engaging regularly with the workforce to
measure the impact of our actions and help shape the future plans. Our employee survey
focuses on measuring engagement which will drive performance across the organisation.

Consultation
3.

Internal
The survey designs have been shared with staff led groups and trade unions, the results of each
survey and actions taken in response have been shared with all staff and managers.

4.

External
Not required because this report is for information only.

Context
5.

Background to 2021 survey programme

Each year we undertake an employee survey to gauge the level of workforce engagement and
understand the employee experience. The results of the survey are used to create organisation-wide
and local action plans to address areas that need improvement.
During the last 18 months, the issues affecting our workforce have changed, and their needs continue
to evolve. In 2020, we carried out two shorter interim surveys to find out what support staff needed to
adapt to a new way of working. This approach was welcomed and it enabled us to respond quickly to
put the appropriate support in place.
This year we have continued with this flexible approach, and instead of our usual annual staff survey,
we have been undertaking short pulse surveys to ask about topical issues so that we can continue to
respond quickly with appropriate changes.
These pulse surveys were designed to be quick and easy to complete, either from a council device or
colleagues’ personal devices for those without regular access to the council network. This approach
gave us greater flexibility on the topics we could ask about and meant we could launch at the most
relevant time. These shorter surveys also meant it has been quicker to analyse and implement actions
as a result.
The results of these surveys helped us shape the most appropriate package of support for colleagues
and guide the plans for the return to the workplace - once government guidelines allowed.
To complement the surveys, we have kept an open and continuous dialogue with the workforce during
the year. This included drop-ins, discussion toolkits and feedback opportunities on strategic priorities
and our transition to new ways of working in response to changing Covid guidance.

Page 85

6.

Survey results and actions taken

The analysis of the survey results is shown in Appendix A.
Each survey is in two parts. The first question is designed to gather views on the employee’s
experience over the past year and the second question presents a series of options for how their
experience can be improved in the future.
The key findings of the surveys are:
I. Mental and physical wellbeing – support during the pandemic
Colleagues reported the most useful tools over the past year included being able to hold virtual
meetings to connect with colleagues, enhanced carers’ leave and the provision of wellbeing
resources such as webinars.
In terms of what would be most helpful for the future, the most popular option was for additional
guidance to help colleagues get the best from working remotely. In response, we launched a series
of special bulletins with practical guidance on a healthy home-working environment, tips for
looking after your physical and mental wellbeing, and building and maintaining resilience.
These bulletins brought together existing resources, introduced new videos and advice, and
provided team exercises and conversation topics.
II.

Performance and development – quality of conversations between employee and manager

Most respondents have reported that despite the challenges of the pandemic, they have had
regular discussions and feedback on their performance with their manager. One area identified for
improvement was having more conversations about learning and talent development.
When asked what would be most helpful for making these conversations more useful, the most
popular option was a need for more help and advice on career development.
In response we have launched a new ‘grow your career’ hub with advice and guidance on
identifying aspirations and strengths, improving confidence, preparing a career development plan
and interview and application guidance.
III.

Resilience – the impact of the work environment on wellbeing and resilience

This survey is currently live. It recognises how colleagues have shown great resilience and
commitment during the pandemic, even in the face of many challenges. Questions focus on the
factors that have been helpful over the last year and what additional support will have the most
positive impact. The response will be used to tailor our wellbeing support and learning
programmes.

7.

Staff engagement

Throughout the year, we have also maintained an open and regular dialogue with the workforce on a
number of other topical issues, including:

Page 86






The future workplace
Draft Corporate Strategy and priorities
Financial position
Covid response

Engagement opportunities have included discussion toolkits, workshops, and a series of drop-in
sessions with opportunities for dialogue with both the Mayor and the Chief Executive.
A recent internal audit of workforce management provided an overall audit opinion of reasonable
assurance, and in respect of employee engagement, provided a substantial level of assurance.

Proposal
8.

That Committee notes the report

Other Options Considered
9.

None.

Risk Assessment
8.

Not required because this report is for information only.

Public Sector Equality Duties
11a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

Page 87

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
11b)

Not required because this report is for information only.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not required because this report is for information only.

Financial
(a) Revenue
Not required because this report is for information only.
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
A – 2021 pulse survey results and actions taken
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None.

Page 88

Appendix A

Page 89

Employee pulse survey results

Employee pulse surveys - overview

Page 90

•

Each year we undertake an employee survey to gauge the level of workforce engagement and
understand the employee experience.

•

During the last 18 months, the issues affecting our workforce have changed, and continue to
evolve. This year, instead of our usual employee survey, we have been undertaking short pulse
surveys to ask about topical issues and respond quickly with appropriate changes.

•

These pulse surveys were designed to be quick and easy to complete, gives us flexibility on the
topics we ask about and are quicker to analyse and act on.

•

The results of these surveys helped us shape the package of support for colleagues and the plans
for the return to the workplace - once government guidelines allowed.

•

To complement the surveys, we have kept an open and continuous dialogue with the workforce
during the year on a number of topical issues.

Mental and physical wellbeing – Results
Part 1: During the pandemic we’ve put in place several measures designed to support colleagues’
wellbeing. Please tell us how useful you have found each of the following (scale of 1 – 5)

Page 91

Tool

Average score
(out of 5)

Virtual meetings with colleagues

3.99

Online resources and webinars including: mental health awareness,
resilience and boosting energy

2.70

COVID-19 - Vulnerable Person Risk Assessment

2.63

Health and Wellbeing Plan for colleagues

2.60

Self-service resources for setting up Display Screen Equipment (DSE) when
working from home

2.75

Provision of enhanced emergency care leave

3.00

Mental and physical wellbeing – Results
Part 2: What tools would be most useful for the future (scale of 1 to 5)

Page 92

Tool

Average score
(out of 5)

Health promotion roadshows at workplaces (in line with COVID guidance)

2.39

A corporate fitness challenge for colleagues to join

2.44

A targeted programme of wellbeing workshops and webinars with tips and
information on how to boost your wellbeing

2.85

Guidance on working well for remote working

3.13

For workers with laptops, automated reminders on screen to take a break
from the screen

3.12

Virtual tea breaks and quizzes with colleagues from across the organisation
where you don’t discuss work

2.89

Mental and physical wellbeing – Actions taken
We introduced a series of bulletins with guidance on how to get the best from working remotely.
These brought together existing resources, introduced new videos and advice, and provided
team exercises and conversation topics.

Page 93

1. Practical support for working remotely - including creating a healthy home-working
environment, access to equipment, reducing distractions, taking regular breaks.
2. Wellbeing for working remotely – tips for boosting mental wellbeing, staying connected with
colleagues whilst home working, looking after your physical health, a ‘whole self MOT’
3. Building and maintaining resilience – maintaining trust and connections, regular reflection
and learning.

Performance and development - results
Part 1: looking back on the quality of colleagues’ conversations with their line manager over the last
year:
Too often
The right
Not often
Not at all
amount for me
enough

Page 94

My line manager provides me with
feedback on how I am doing in my job

My line manager provides me
with helpful advice and support
on what I can do to improve in
my job

1.5%

69.3%

22.2%

7%

Strongly
agree

Agree

Neither
agree or
disagree

Disagree

Strongly
disagree

18%

38.4%

22.7%

13.6%

7.3%

Performance and development - results

Page 95

My line manager and I have created a
plan for my career development and
progression

My line manager and I discuss and plan
my learning and development needs

Yes

No

I don’t know

37.4%

55.9%

6.7%

Yes

No

I don’t know

64.1%

31.1%

4.8%

Performance and development - results
In the last 12 months I have had a performance
review/appraisal with my line manager

Page 96
My performance
review/appraisal was …

Yes

No

77.3%

22.7%

Very helpful

Moderately
helpful

Slightly helpful

Not at all
helpful

30.4%

35.2%

21.2%

13.2%

Performance and development - results
Part 2: Looking forward - Which of these options would be most effective to make regular 1:1
conversations with your manager more useful for you?

Page 97

Option

% of votes

More messages throughout the year reminding people of the importance of having
regular conversations and keeping records of what’s going well and what isn’t

16%

Additional guidance and resources in different formats (e.g.: case studies giving
examples of effective performance appraisals, videos to help with giving constructive
feedback, etc.)

18%

Drop-in sessions to discuss different ways to increase your own and others’ effectiveness 19%
(e.g.: motivation, resilience, constructive conversations about approaching performance
issues, etc.)
More online resources focussed on helping you to develop your career (e.g.: support
with: greater confidence to progress in my career, clarity around my skills and
aspirations, career job search skills, more visibility of opportunities at BCC)

26%

No support needed, I have effective 1:1 conversations already

21%

Performance and development - actions
•

A new ‘Grow your Career’ catalogue was launched on the Learning Hub, which
brings together existing career development resources and introduces some new
advice and guidance:

Page 98

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

A ‘career check in’ discussion guide for employees and managers
Help to identify aspirations and goals
Help to prepare a personal development plan
Videos and training modules – building confidence
Interview and application techniques
Guidance on effective one to ones
Guidance on effective performance reviews
Leadership pipeline
Learning and development catalogue

This new resource underpins our talent development and succession planning
strategy, and is being promoted as part of the annual workforce planning cycle.

Resilience – survey underway
Recognising that there are many things which influence our resilience, this survey asks what
factors have been most helpful, and what additional support will have the most impact. This
survey is open now, and will close in the new year.

Page 99

Part 1: Which of these have supported your wellbeing in the past six months:
1. The opportunity to discuss my workload and priorities with my manager
2. My relationship with my manager
3. My relationship with my colleagues
4. My workplace needs are met e.g. through reasonable adjustments or work-life balance arrangements
5. Being able to work in an agile way, from home or a location that suits me
6. Being able to spend time in a council workspace
7. Having access to the Employee Assistance Programme (EAP)
8. Having access to mental health and wellbeing support packages
9. Support from Staff-Led Groups (SLGs)
10. Support from my trade union

Resilience – survey underway
Part 2 : Which would have the most positive impact on your wellbeing in the next six months?
We will use answers to this question to help tailor our wellbeing and learning support programmes.

Page 100

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

More recognition of my efforts by my manager
The opportunity to discuss my workload and priorities with my manager
More tools and opportunities to build relationships with my colleagues
A mentor to help within my team
Being able to spend more time in a council workspace
Being able to voluntarily reduce my working hours
Improved processes / better technology to make workload more manageable
Resilience workshops to help me and my team manage pressure at work
More publicity of the health and wellbeing support and training already available and encourage and
support managers to promote it
10. Access to free advice about finances, relationships, bereavement and other personal issues and events
outside of work

Employee engagement
During the year, we have kept an open and continuous dialogue with the workforce
on strategic priorities and adapting to new Covid guidance. This included:
•

Page 101

•

•
•

Future of the workplace: team discussion toolkits to support the transition to new
workplace arrangements in line with government guidance. Colleagues were encouraged to
discuss the most suitable ways of working and offered support.
New draft corporate strategy: workshops to discuss cross-cutting priorities, learning more
about the principles underpinning the draft strategy and share ideas and make new
connections with colleagues across the organisation.
Financial position: colleagues were invited to budget discussion drop-in sessions and to
share their thoughts and ideas via an online feedback form.
Covid response: a workshop was held with colleagues who were re-deployed during the
response phase of the pandemic to understand and learn from their experiences.

Agenda Item 12

HR Committee
16th December 2021
Report of:

Director: Workforce & Change

Title:

COVID-19 recovery and update

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Mark Williams (Head of Human Resources)

Contact Telephone Number:

07795 446270

Recommendation
That the Committee notes the report.
Summary
COVID-19 has been the most significant incident the council has had to manage in living memory. The
council responded quickly and effectively. Mandatory provisions regarding the wearing of face coverings
on public transport and in shops were introduced on 30 th November 2021 in response to the Omicron
variant. This report provides an update on our work since the last meeting of the Committee on 23rd
September 2021.
The significant issues in the report are:
- Social distancing measures in workplaces and a requirement to wear face coverings in when moving
around remain in place and will be reviewed again in March 2022. This review will take into account
infection rates, the advice of the city’s Director of Public Health and our obligations to our employees
under the Health and Safety at Work Act.
- The risk of exposure to COVID-19 remains high in workplaces especially given the Omicron variant. We
will continue to manage the risks in accordance with current best practice guidance from the Health and
Safety Executive (HSE).

Page 102

Policy
1.

The Council’s HR policies have been modified where appropriate to reflect the current
circumstances. For example, sickness absence related to COVID-19 is discounted under the
Supporting Attendance Policy.

Consultation
2.

Internal
Regular meetings are held with the trade unions who support the approach that is being taken
regarding the management of workplaces. Managers are kept regularly appraised of the plans
and have a chance to discuss at the monthly Leadership Forum.

3.

External
None.

Context

4.

We are continuing to take a measured approach to opening workplaces which takes account of
the current rate of COVID-19 case rate in the city; the advice of the city’s Director of Public
Health and our obligations to our employees under the Health and Safety at Work Act. We have
increased the availability of desks in our core buildings whilst retaining social distancing
measures. Heads of Service are now responsible for managing their allocated zones in
accordance with our future workplace principles. There are also no restrictions on employees
being permitted to work in offices but they are required to undertake an online induction course
and book allocated desks before coming to work. These arrangements were reviewed by the
Corporate Leadership Board in October and it was agreed that they would remain in place until
the end of March 2022. However, the current arrangements for using workplaces are under
continuous review give the emergence of the Omicron variant.

5.

We continue to require staff to wear face coverings when moving about in workplaces. We
continue to maintain social distancing measures in offices (including desk spacing), maintaining
good ventilation and promoting good hygiene measures. As part of our work to reduce COVID
cases we are continuing to encourage all staff to get both vaccine and booster doses and take a
lateral flow test twice a week if they are attending the workplace

6.

Three hybrid meeting rooms are now in place at City Hall. Meeting rooms can also be used now
at all offices.

7.

Daily monitoring of absence due to COVID-19 continues. Absence rates due to COVID have been
risen in line with the rate of infection increasing. The chart below shows the sickness absence
rate by directorate in the last 12 months:

Page 103

8.

Employees at all levels in the organisation – including those within the HR, Internal
Communications and OD teams - have responded and adapted to COVID-19 very positively
through their work in supporting the Council’s response to the pandemic.

Proposal
9.

That the Committee notes this report.

Other Options Considered
10.

None as this report is for information only.

Risk Assessment
11.

Not required because this report is for information only. However, the return to workplace
project has a detailed project plan and risks are managed appropriately as part of the project.

Public Sector Equality Duties
15a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,

Page 104

to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
15b)

Not required because this report is for information only. However, the return to the workplace
project has a comprehensive Equalities Impact Assessment in place.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Not required because this report is for information only.
Financial
(a) Revenue
(b) Capital
Not required because this report is for information only.
Land
Not applicable.
Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
None
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None.

Page 105

Agenda Item 13
/u

HR Committee
16th December 2021
Report of:

Director of Workforce and Change

Title:

Update on key HR matters

Ward:

N/A

Officer Presenting Report:

Mark Williams, Head of Human Resources

Contact Telephone Number:

07795 446270

Recommendation
That the Committee notes the report.
Summary
Members have requested a regular update report on key HR matters that affect the workforce. The
report provides an update on current HR policy consultations, national pay negotiations and the Senior
Coroners Pay Settlement.
The significant issues in the report are:
- A new Travel Policy will be introduced from 1 April 2022.
- A COVID-19 Vaccination Policy is now in place which complies with the legal requirements for those
working in Registered Care Homes to be fully vaccinated. The regulations will be extended to Care
Quality Commission regulated activities from 1 April 2022.
- The National Employers have made a final pay offer of 1.75% from 1 April 2021. The GMB, UNISON and
UNITE are currently balloting their members on taking Industrial Action.

Page 106

Policy
1.

The Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service has the delegated authority to approve all the
Council’s HR policies. The Human Resources Committee determines whether to apply national
pay settlements to the Chief Executive and Chief Officers.

Consultation
3.

Internal
Not required because this report is for information only.

4.

External
Not required because this report is for information only.

Context
5.

Members have requested a regular update report on key HR matters that affect the workforce.
The report provides an update on current HR policy consultations and national pay negotiations.

HR Policy consultations
6.

The most significant consultation has related to reforms to our Travel Policy. There has been a
wide-ranging consultation and this committee contributed their views on the initial proposals.
The final proposals were subject to a period of consultation with stakeholders which ended on
10 December 2021. A summary is provided at Appendix A. Changes will be introduced from 1
April 2022.

7.

A new COVID-19 Vaccination Policy for workers in Registered Care Homes which came into force
from 11 November 2021 and requires them to be vaccinated. The new Vaccination Policy sets
out the arrangements for existing staff as well as new joiners. The regulations will be extended
to Care Quality Commission regulated activities from 1 April 2022. This will affect aspects of
Adult Social Care services. The Government decided not to make Flu vaccination a mandatory
requirement. We are continuing to encourage all employees to take up the offer of the vaccine
through continued support from Public Health and our NHS colleagues.

8.

We have refreshed our Probationary Policy following consultation. Proposals to revise our Code
of Practice on Investigations received wide ranging and extensive feedback which has been
beneficial. The updated policy will come into effect in the New Year.

National Pay Negotiations
9.

The committee received a report on the status of the national pay negotiations at the last
meeting of the committee. The national pay offers for Single Status and Craft Workers from 1
April 2021 have been rejected by the trade unions and they are balloting their members on
Industrial Action as set out below.


GMB have conducted a consultative ballot to determine whether to proceed to a formal

Page 107




10.

ballot on Industrial Action. The consultative ballot closes on Monday 13th December 2022.
UNISON have commenced an Industrial Action ballot on strike action which closes on 14
January 2022.
UNITE will be commencing a ballot on Industrial Action on 14 January 2022 and this will
close on 17 February 2022.

The offers and numbers of employees affected is summarised below:



Single Status - 1.75% from 1 April 2021 (6,645 employees)
Craft Worker - 1.75% from 1 April 2021 (302 employees)

11.

The Council has paid the Living Wage Foundation rate of £9.50 per hour to all employees on
Bristol Grades 1 to 4 inclusive – as well as apprentices – since 1 April 2021. This is a higher rate
than the pay offer made nationally for the lowest earners covered by the national agreement.
The Living Wage will be uplifted to £9.90 per hour from 1 April 2022.

12.

Currently, through the Pay Policy Statement agreed at Council annually, the power to apply
national pay settlements to the Chief Executive, Executives Directors and Directors is delegated
to the HR Committee. When these national pay negotiations are concluded, the Committee will
be asked to consider the matter.
Return to work interviews

13.

At the last committee, Members raised a question in relation to the arrangements for recording
of return to work interviews. Return to Work interviews can be recorded on the Council’s HR
system iTrent and managers are encouraged to do this. However, managers can and do conduct
return to work interviews as part of routine 1 to 1s and supervision. We will be reminding
managers of the benefits and importance of using the HR system in the New Year.

Proposal
14.

That the Committee notes this report

Other Options Considered
15.

None.

Risk Assessment
16.

Not required because this report is for information only.

Public Sector Equality Duties
15a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:

Page 108

i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
15b)

Not required because this report is for information only.

Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
Once the outcome of negotiations is known, it is within the Terms of Reference of the Human
Resources Committee to determine whether to apply the JNC Chief Executives and Chief Officers
pay awards for 2021/22.
Husinara Jones, Team Leader/Solicitor 13 September 2021
Financial
(a) Revenue
(b) Capital
The Council’s budget for 2021/22 assumed funding of £0.5M for pay settlements in accordance
with the government’s pay policy for 2021/22. The pay offer of 1.75% for employees covers the
vast majority of Council workers and will cost an additional £2.9M in 2021/22. Funding will need
to be identified to meet these costs if the pay offer is agreed nationally
Michael Pilcher, Chief Accountant 15 September 2021
Land
Not applicable.

Page 109

Personnel
Not required because this report is for information only.
Appendices:
A
Travel Policy Proposals.
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: None.

Page 110

Page 111

Developing a new
travel strategy & policy – final
proposals
Mark Williams (Head of HR)
November 2021

Reminder - 2030 ambitions

Page 112

Energy Saving Trust: key findings 2020
CO2 emissions 323
tonnes per year
Page 113

Majority of grey
fleet (63%) fuelled
by petrol
Average age of
vehicles is 8.5 years

Original proposals (July 2021)

Page 114

• Only grey fleet mileage within the City Boundary can be claimed.
• No claims can be made for travel outside of the City - Pool car (or hire vehicle) or rail and
taxi must be used (employees who choose to use their vehicle will not be allowed to
submit mileage claims in respect of journeys outside the city).
• Any travel costs associated with attendance at Council-funded CPD or training cannot be
claimed.
• From the date of CAZ implementation, daily charges will not be reimbursed for noncompliant vehicles, unless there are exceptional circumstances approved in advance by the
employee's manager.
• Staff who use non-compliant vehicles will not be permitted to claim any mileage 1 year
after the date of CAZ implementation.
• Blue Badge holders will be an exception to the new rules in relation to job-related travel
outside of the City boundary.

Feedback on original proposals
•
•

Page 115

•
•
•
•
•

•
•

‘Concerns from services, in many cases current arrangements are convenient for employees and low cost
for the Council.
‘There is a fear that making changes will lead to recruitment and retention problems and significantly
increase costs of service delivery.’
‘Not feasible to travel long distances by bike or spend hours on buses.’
‘Travelling to a location to pick up a pool car is seen as a waste of time and fuel.’
‘Concern that not using a car for travel could impact on service delivery and targets.’
‘Lower number of claims and miles travelled may naturally continue into the future.’
‘30% of vehicles are not yet CAZ compliant, the employer should encourage staff to make choices rather
than seek to strip them of benefits. Staff make significant long term investments in vehicles and it lead to
hardship even with grants.’
‘Stopping grey fleet milage claims outside the city will adversely impact certain groups of staff.’
‘Restricting exemptions to those with a blue badge misunderstand disability.’

Revised proposals for implementation 1 April 2022
Employees who are contractually required to provide a vehicle for business use (regular users)
1.

2.
Page 116

3.

4.
5.
6.
7.

Business mileage within the borders of Bristol, B&NES, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire can be claimed at HMRC
approved rates until 31 March 2025, subject to a cap of 6,000 miles per annum (which is the average annual mileage of
fleet vehicles).
In line with HMRC rules, commuting mileage cannot be claimed. An employee's home may be used as the start or end
point of a journey where the distance between their contractual work base and the destination is greater than the
distance between their home and the destination.
From 1 April 2025 mileage claims will only be permitted for ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEV). Transitional protection (to
be determined) will be available until 2030.
Car club or fleet (hire or pool) vehicles or public transport should be used for journeys outside the borders of Bristol,
B&NES, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire.
CAZ charges will not be re-imbursed to any employee, whether in private or fleet vehicles. Requests for reimbursement of
CAZ charges incurred as a result of emergency call outs may be approved by the relevant head of service .
Penalty Charge Notices (in relation to the CAZ or anything else) must be paid by the employee and will not be re-imbursed
by the Council under any circumstances.
Heads of Service will regularly review the need for employees to provide vehicles for business use with a view
to eliminating this over time. Where a vehicle is critical to service delivery, it should be provided by the Council.

Revised proposals for implementation 1 April 2022 (continued)
Employees who are NOT contractually required to provide a vehicle for business use (casual users)
1.
2.

From 1 April 2022 business mileage cannot be claimed.
Car club or fleet (hire or pool) vehicles, public transport, walking or cycling / scooting should be used instead.

Reasonable adjustments
Page 117

1.

Where an employee needs to use a vehicle as a reasonable adjustment, business mileage can be claimed at
HMRC approved rates until 31 March 2025. From 1 April 2025 mileage claims will only be permitted for ULEV.
Transitional protection (to be determined) will be available.

Air travel within the UK
1.

In line with the International Travel Policy, re-imbursement for air travel within the UK is not claimable, unless
the equivalent rail or public transport journey would take more than 6 hours.

Proposed measures to support the change

Page 118

Launch of a Green Travel Plan in 2022, which will include a package of support for
sustainable travel.
Measures may include:
1. A fleet of bookable electric and pedal pool bikes in convenient locations
2. Mobility credits for business travel – to allow bus, train and e-scooter travel within
Bristol
3. Access to a city-wide network of car clubs
4. Salary sacrifice scheme for Ultra Low Emission Vehicles for personal car purchase
5. Personalised travel plans, comms and intensive support

